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ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the FORTY FIFTH Annual General Meeting of the members of Orient Abrasives Limited
will be held at Hotel Lords Ego Inn Porbandar (A Unit of Delite Enterprises), Near Circuit House, Chaupati,
Porbandar — 360575 on Wednesday, 28" September, 2016 at 10.00 A.M. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including Cash Flow Statements,
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account including various schedules thereupon alongwith the Director’s
and Auditor's Report thereon for the year ended 31% March, 2016,

To declare final dividend on equity shares for FY 2015-16.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hemu! Shah (DIN-00058558), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint M/s SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (having registration no. 324882E), as Auditors from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.  To consider and, if thought fit, to give your assent or dissent to the following resolution proposed to be
passed as an Ordinary Resolution for regularisation of Additional Director, Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra (DIN-
02036626} :- :

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra, who was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from
29 September, 2015 on the Board of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Articles of Association of the Comparny and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting,
and in respect of whom a notice has been received from a member in writing under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with requisite deposit, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appecinted as Director of the Company.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to give your assent or dissent to the following resolution proposed to be
passed as an Ordinary Resolution for Appointment and Ratification of Cost Auditors Remuneration :-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded by way of ratification as to appointment
of M/s. S.K.Rajani & Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113}, Cost Accountants for conducting audit of Cost Accounts
and Records for the Financial Year 2016-2017 of:-

Abrasives Grains and Power Division of the Company, pursuant to rule 3 & 4 of Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014 and further amendment if any, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, at a fee of
¥ 1,00,000/- plus applicable taxes and various out of pocket expenses to be incurred therein, as may be
determined, recommended by Audit Committee and finalized by Board of Direciors in consultation with Cost

Auditors.”
For and on behalf of the Board '
Sd/-
Mihir H Devani
Place: Mumbai Whole Time Director and CEQO
Date: 09.08.2016 (DEIN-07238089)

The Notice of the meeting containing the business to be transacted, is enclosed. As per Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with related rules and regulation 44 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure)
Requirements 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its members the {acility to cast their votes by electronic
means on all resolutions set forth in the notice as aforesaid. The instructions for e-voting are enciosed herewith.

Enclosures:

Instructions for e-voting
Proxy form
Attendance slip
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ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

NOTES

1.

i

vi

vii

viii

A Member entitled to attend and voie at the Annual General Mesting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of him / her behalf and the proxy need noi be a Member of the Company.

The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at ithe Company’s
Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the meeting
i.e. on or before 26" September, 2016 before 10.00 a.m. Proxies submitied on behalf of limited
companies, societies, efc., must be supporied by appropriate resclutions/authority, as applicable. A
person can act as proxy on behalf of Members nof exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. in case a proxy is proposed Io be
appointed by a Member helding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or sharehoider.

Proxy shali carry his / her identily proof (any one of PAN Card, Voler ID Card, AADHAR Card, Driving
License, Passpert) at the venue of Annual General Mesting.

During the period beginning 24 hrs before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending
with the conciusion of the meeting, a membear would be entitled to inspect ihe proxies lodged at any time
during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in wnrmg is
given to the Company.

The business set cut in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company
is providing facility for voting by electronic means. Instructions and other information relating to e-voting
are given in this Notice. A route map giving directions to reach the venue of the 45th Annua! General
Meeting is given at the end of the Notice.

The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be clesed from Tuesday, 20" day of
September, 2016 to Wednesday, 28th day of September 2016, (both days inclusive). if the dividend as
recommeanded by the Board of Directors is approved at the Annual General Meeting, payment of such
dividend will be made on or after September 30, 2016 as under: '

. To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held in elecironic form, as per the data made available
" by the National Securities Depository Limited (*NSDL"} and the Central Depository Services {India) -
Limited (*CDSL™), as of the close of business hours on Monday, 19" September, 2016

ii. To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form, after giving effect 1o valid trangfers in
respact of transfer requests lodged with the Company on or before the close of business hours on
Monday, 19" September, 2016, being the cut-off date.

Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEB! (LODRA) Regulations, 2015 read with Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013, as to details of Directors proposed to be appointed re-appointed
alongwith Secretarial Standards on General Meeting fssued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
india (1C8I) are stated in this notice and aiso provided in the Report on Corporate Goverhance forming
part of the Annual Report.

Members holding shares In dematerialized form are reqguested to intimate all changes pertaining to their
bank detalls for payment of dividend etc,, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS}, Electronic Clearing
Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail
address, contact numbers, eic., to their Depository Participant {DP). Changes intimated to the DP will
then be automatically reflecied in the Company’s records which will help the Company and the Company's
Fegistrars and Transfer Agents, to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in
physicatl form are requested to opt for dematerialization of shares and intimate changes as aforesaid, if
any, to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider convertmg their holding to
dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portiolio
management. Members can contact the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents for assistance in this
regard.

Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folic are requested
to send to the Company or RTA, the deiails of such folios together with the share certificates for
consolidating their holding in one folio. A consclidated share certificate will be returned to such Member
after making requisite changes therson. .

in case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the
order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will only be entiiled to vote.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses are
requested to register same with RTA/Depositories.
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10.

Members desiring any information as regards the accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early
date so as to enable the management 1o keep the information ready at the meeting.

For security reasons and for proper conduct of the Mesting, entry to the place of the Mesting wili be regulated
by the Attendance Slip, which is annexed to the Proxy Form. Members/ Proxies are requested to bring their
Attendance Slip complete in all respects and signed at the place provided there at and hand it over at the
entrance of the venue.

Pursuant to Sections 205A and 205C and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, all
unclaimed / unpaid dividends, remaining unclaimed / unpaid for a peried of seven years from the date they
became due for payrment, have been transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established by the Central Government. No claim shall lie against the |EPF or the Company for the amounis
so transferred nor shali any payment be made in respect of such claim.

Updation of Members’ Details:

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Aifairs under the Companies
Act, 2013 requires the Company / Share Registrars and Transfer Agents to record additional details of Members,
including their PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. A form for capturing the
additional details is appended at the end of this Annual Report. Members holding shares in physical form are
reguested to submit the filled in form to the Company or its Share Registrars and Transfer Agents. Members
holding shares in electronic form are reguested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participants.

Details of Unclaimed Dividend on Website:

In order to help Members to ascertain the status of Unclaimed Dividends, the Company has uploaded the
information in respect of Unclaimed Dividends for the financial year ended 31st March, 2009 and subsequent
years on the Website of Investor Education and Protection Fund, www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investor Relations”
Section on the website of the Company, www.orientabrasives.com. The Company has also instructed our
Registrar & Transfer Agents to approach its members requesting them to claim dividend on/or prior to transfer
io IEPF.

Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend warrant for the financial years 2008-09 and onwards,
are requested to make their claims withoui any delay ic the Company. Members’ aitention is particularly drawn
to the “Corporate Governance” section of the annual report in respect of unclaimed dividend.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, this Notice and the Annual Report of the Company for the
financial year 2015-16 are being sent by e-mail to those Members who have registered their e-mail address
with the Company {in respect of shares held in physical form} or with their DP {in respect of shares held in
electronic form) and made available to the Company by the Depositories. The Company requests those
Members who have not yet registered their e-mail address, to register the same directly with their DP, in case
shares are held in electronic form or with the Company, in case shares are held in physical form,

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available for
the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single name and who have
not vet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by subrnitting Form No. SH-13. If a
Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may submit the same in
Form No. SH-14. Both Forms are appended at the end of the Annual Report. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to submit the forms to the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Agents.
Members holding shares in electronic form may-obtain Nomination forms from their respective Depository
Participant. ' s

Vi

Hard copy of Annual Report is being sent io the members, who have not registered their e-mail 1D with their
depositories. Any member who has registered their a-mail 1D, who is also interested in obtaining a physical
copy of the Annual Report, may write to the company or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company. _

The Notice of the 45th Annual General Meeting and instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance Slip,
Ballot Form, Proxy Form and the Annual Report 2015-16, is being sent by electronic mode to ali members
whose email addresses are registered with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company /
Depository Participant(s) unless a member has requested for a hard copy of the same.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company / Depository Participant{s) of any change in address or demise of
any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for
long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Farticipant and holdings
should be verified.
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11.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 45th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for the
year 2015-16 will also be available on the Company’s website [www.orientabrasives.com] for their download.
The physical copies of the aforesaid documents and documents referred {o in the notice will be available at
the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on all working days up to the
date of the Annual General Meeting. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive
such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication, the shareholders may also send reguests to the Company’s investor email id:
[investor @ calmail.co.in].

E-voting

In compliance with Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) i any,
read together with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015,
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thersof for the time being in force and any other rules,
regulations, notifications etc. {in force / brought in force after issuance of present notice), the Company is
pleased to provide to the Members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 45th Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through the e-voting services provided by
National Securities Depository Lid. (‘NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and members attending the
AGM, who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM _
through ballot paper. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the
AGM but shall not be able to cast their voies again. The instructions for e voting are annexed to the notice.
E-voting facility is available at the link www.evoting.nsdl.com

The Detailed procedure / instructions for e-voting is as follows:-

a) For Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s)

The members who receive email form NSDL should open the PDF file attached with the email. The said
PDF file contains his / her user ID / Password for e-voting. Please note that the password is an Initial
Password. : :

b) For Members whose email addresses are not registered with the Company / Depository Participani(s)

In case of Members whose email addresses are not registered with the Company / Depository Participants,
their User ID and initial password / PIN is provided on the Attendance Slip sent with the AGM Notice.
Please follow all staps from Sr. No. (ii) to (xi) as mentioned in a above, o cast your vote,

¢) In case, any member does not receive ‘User-ID' and ‘Password’ as mentioned in Sr. No. (a) and (b),
then, they shall contact _the NSDL on toll free no. 1800-222-890.

d) The following steps should be followed for casting the vote through remote e-voting {In both the cases
mentioned at Sr, No. (a) and (b) above:
{I} Open internet browser and type the following URL: hitp://www.evoting.nsdl.com
(i) Click on Shareholder — Login.

(iif) If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then you can use your existing user D and
password.

(iv) If you are logging in for the first time, please enter the user 1D and password provided through e-
mail {(as per Sr. No (a) above) or in a letter enclosed with Annual Report (as per Sr. No (b} above),
as the case may be.

(v} Password change menu will appear on your screen. Change to a new password of your choice;
ensure that it contains a minimum of 8 digit or characters or a combination of both. Please keep
vour password confidential.

{vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Ciick on remote e-voting: Active voting cycle.
{vii) Select "EVEN" {E-Voting Event Number) of “Orient Abrasives Limited”.
{vili) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Voie page opens.

{ix) The voting rights of the shareholders shall be reckoned in proportfon to their shares held in the total
paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut - off date i.e., 19" Sepiember, 2016.

{x) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and “Confirm" when prompted.
{xi) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
{xii) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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(xiii) Corporate / Institutional members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also required to
send scanned certified true copy (PDF format) of the Board Resolution / Authority letter, etc. together
with attested specimen signature(s) of duly authorized representative (s}, to the Scrutinizer through
e-mail at jatinfcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in and a copy to
investor @ oalmail.co.in Company Secretary of the company.

e) The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not
be entitled to cast their vote.

fy  The remote e-voting period shall commence on Sunday, 25" September, 2016 (2:00 A.M.) and ends on
Tuesday, 27th September, 2016 (5:00 P.M.). Thereafter, the remote e-voting facility will be blocked.

g} Any person who have acquired shares and became members of the Company after the dispatch of the
notice of AGM but before the cut-off daie of 19" September, 2016, may obtain their user ID and password
for e-voting from the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent or NSDL.

hy In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Question (FAQs) — Shareholders and remote
e-voting user manual Shareholders, available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdt.com

i}  You can also update your mobile number and email ID in the user profile details of the folio which may
be used for sending future communication.

i}  Any person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the Depositories / Share transfer agent as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the
facility of remote e-voting / voting at the Annual General Meeting through Ballot Paper.

k) The Company has appointed M/s SPJ & Co., Company Secretaries, as ‘Scrutinizer’ for conducting and
scrutinizing the voting process (Ballot Paper as well as Remote e-voting} in a fair and transparent manner.

in terms of Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, in order to enable its members, who do not have access
to e-voting facility, to send their assent or dissent in writing in respect of the resolutions as set out in this
Notice, a Ballot Form is annexed. A member desiring to exercise votes by Ballot shall complete the
annexed Ballot Form with assent (for) or dissent (against) and send it to M/s SPJ & Co., Company
Secretaries. ‘Scrutinizer’ at 303, Building No. 10159, Padam Singh Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110005
so as to reach them on or before September 27%, 2016 by 5.00 P.M. Any Ballot Form received after the
said date shall be treated as if the reply from the member has not been received. The members, who
have casted their vote prior to the meeting by e-voting / physical ballot, shall not be entitled to vote again
at the Annual General Meeting. Once a vote is cast by a member, he / she shall not be allowed to alter
it subsequently.

) The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast
at the AGM by Ballot Papers and thereafier unlock the votes casted through remote e-voting in the presence
of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer shall make, within a

. pericd not exceeding two days from the conclusion of the AGM; a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the
total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman of meeting or a person authorized by him in
writing.

m) The Results of voting along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company www.orientabrasives.com and on the website of NSDL, immediately after the declaration of
result by the Chairman of the meeting or a person authorized by him. The results shall aiso be forwarded
to Stock Exchanges, where the company’s equity shares are listed.

For and on bhehalf of the Board
Sd/-
Mihir H Devani
Whole Time Director and CEQ
(DIN-07238089)
Place: Mumbal
Date: 09.08.2016
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 5

In accerdance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association
of the Company, the following director was appointed as additional director:-

. Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra (DIN-02036626), w.e.f. 29" September 2015.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the above mentioned director holds office up to the date
of this Annual General Meeting. In this regard the Company has received request in writing from a member
of the company proposing candidature for her appointment as Director of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of Section 180 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board
feels that presence of Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra on the Board would be beneficial to the Company and hence
recommend resolution No. 5 for approval and adoption.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than Mrs. Sangeeta
Bohra and those mentioned in the respective resolutions and their relatives are in any way concerned or

" interested, financially or ctherwise. The Board recommends resclution under Iltem No. 5 to be passed as
ordinary resolution.

ITEM NO. 6

As per recommendation given by the audit commitiee and further considered by the Board of Directors, the
Company has appointed M/s. S. K. Rajani & Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113), Cost Accountants for the
financial year 2016-17. However as per provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 3 &
- 4 of Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, it is required to approve the professional fees, which
“has been decided by the Board of Directors for Cost Audit for the financial year 2016-17. During the year the
Board has approved the professional fee of ¥ 1,00,000/- plus Setvice Tax plus out of pocket expenses for cost
audit of cost accounts and reccrds maintained by the company.

Accordingly your Board seek approval for authorization to Board so as to pay professional fees of
¥ 1,00,000/- plus Service Tax plus of out of pocket expenses for cost audit by way of an Ordinary Resclution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnet of the Company or their relatives are in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Mihir H Devani
Whole Time Director and CEQ
(DIN-07238089}
Place: Mumbai
Date : 09.08.2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Hembers

Your directors are pteased to submit the FORTY FIFTH annual report of the Company along with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

( In Lacs}

PARTICULARS 2015-2016 2014-2015
Revenue from Operations {Gross) 31,131.15 20,427.24
Less: Excise Duty 2,501.38 2,136.48
Revenue from Operations (Net) 28,629.77 18,280.76
Add:- Other income 205.64 90.27
Total Revenue 28,835.41 18,381.03
Profit before depreciation, interest and tax 4,944.31 3,048.68
Less: Depreciation 896.22 1,069.07

Interest 340.45 275.71
Profit before Income Tax 3,707.64 1,713.90
Less :  Income Tax 1,346.48 482.98
Net Profit for the year 2,361.16 1,230.92
Add: Balance brought forward from the previous year 5,756.76 5,300.79
Amount available for appropriation 8,117.92 6,531.71
Appropriation:
General Reserve 400.00 400.00
Dividend on Equity Shares 299,10 299.10
Corporate dividend tax 60.89 60.89
CSR Expenses 31.66 14.96
Balance carried forward to balance shest 7,357.93 5,756.76

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND FUTURE OUTLOOCK

The gross turnover of the Company increased to ¥ 31,131.15 lacs from T 20,427.24 Lacs during previous year
i.e. registering an impressive jump of more than 50 %. Accordingly, Profit Before Tax (PBT) and Net Profit were
% 3,707.64 Lacs and ¥ 2,361.16 lacs respectively as compared to ¥ 1,713.90 Lacs and ¥ 1,230.92 Lacs respectively
in the previous year. )

During the year under review the Company sold Bauxite and its value added products amounting to ¥ 30,464.62 Lacs
as compared to T 19,800.28 Lacs in the previous year. The Company has received permission from Gujarat Government
for sale of Bauxite. The Market for abrasive grains is marginally showing improvement in current year.

Your Company also runs wind power plants of 11.1 MW in Rajasthan & Karnataka. During the year the gross revenue
from sale of power 1o respective state power distribution companies was ¥ 686.53 L.acs as compare to ¥ 626.96 Lacs
in previcus year. :

Your Cornpany has a total thermal power plant capacity of 18 MW out of which 9 MW is based on coal and 9 MW on
furnace oil. The fumace cil based power plant is used as and when required and same has been found viable.
Your directors are hopeful that the company’s performance will improve in the coming years.

CREDIT RATING OF BANK BORROWINGS

For Leng Term Bank Facilities A {Single A) rating has been assigned by Credit Analysis & Research Lid. (CARE).
This rating indicates adequate safety and carvies low credit risk.

For short term borrowings A1+ (A One Plus) has been assigned by Credit Analysis & Research Ltd. (CARE). This
rating indicates very stroeng degree of safety and lowest credit risk.

DIVIDEND

Based on the Company’s performance, your directors are pleased o recommend a final dividend of T 0.25 per share
(i.e. 25%) for the financial year 2015-16 on the capital of 11,96,39,200 equity shares of T 1.00 each, in previous year
it was also ¥ 0.25 per share {i.e. 25%). '

The final dividend and dividend distributed tax involve the cash out flow of ¥ 359.99 l.acs (Previcus Year T 359.99
Lacs), the dividend is subject to approval of members of the Company in the Annual General Meeting.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital audit, as per the directives of the Securities and Exchange Board of India, is being conducted on a
quarterly basis by M/s. Jatin Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries. The Share Capital Audit Reporls are duly
forwarded to BSE Limited, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the shares of your Company are listed.
Furthermore, it is confirmed that during the year under review the Company has neither issued shares in general nor
with differential voting rights or granted stock options or sweat equity and does not have any scheme to fund its
employees to purchase the shares of the Company. As on 31¢ March, 2016, none of the Directors of the Company
hold convertible instruments.

The paid up Share Cap1tal of the Company as on 315‘ March, 2016 was ¥ 1,196.52 Lacs.

RESERVES

Your Company, before the declaration of dividend in every financial year, iransfers such percentage of its profits for
that financial year to the General Reserve as it considers appropriate. Pursuant o the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the year under review, the Company proposes to fransfer ¥ 460 Lacs to Reserves.

PROMOTER CHANGE

The members are aware that during the year under reference new set of promoters were reined in, consequent upon
erstwhile Promoters i.e. Rajgarhia family executing a Share Purchase Agreement with present promoters for change
in management and controliing rights in your Company for which due course of Law of Land was followed. Presently
Bombay Minerals Limited {(BML) are acting as Promoters of the Company.

HOLDING SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

During the current year, w.e.f. 15 July 2015 Bombay Minerals Limited, became the asscciate company of your Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company does not have any subsidiary, hence nothing is required to be stated on this count and the resulis
presented before members are standalone results of Orient abrasives Limited only. It is confirmed that same are prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, form part of
Annual Report and are reflected in the Financial Statements of the Company.

The annual financial statements and related detailed information will be kept at the Registered Office of the Company
and will be available to investors seeking information at any time.

FIXED DEPOSIT

During the year under review, your Company did not accepted any fixed deposits.
There are no unclaimed deposits as on March 31, 2018.

Deposits accepted during the year - NIL

Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year NIL

Whether there has been any default in repayment of
deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year
and if so, number of such cases and the total amount

involved

(i) at the beginning of the year : NIL
(il maximum during the year : NIL
(ii) at the end of the year : NIL
(iv Non Complied Deposits : NIL

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year, there were no loans, guarantees or investments extended by the Company.

GOING CONCERN 7 '

During the year, there is no significant and/or material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and companys operatlons in future.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors:

The Company’s Statutory Auditors M/s SRBC & Co. LLP. (ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E) Chartered Accountants,
retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Mesting and are eligible for re-appointment, and had expressed
their willingness to be re-appointed.
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Your company has aiso received a certificate from the Auditors to the effect that they are eligible for appointment
under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014, as
amended, time 1o time.

Members are requested to appoint the proposed auditors in ensuing AGM from conclusion of this 45" AGM to 486"
AGM for a period of one year and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Cost Auditors: ‘

M/s. 8. K. Rajani & Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113}, Cost Accountants have been appointed o conduct Cost Audits
relating of the Company for the year ending 31 March, 2017. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
read with The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members are requested to consider the ratification of the
rémuneration payable to M/s. S.K.Rajani & Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113)

Pursuant to erstwhile appointment effected, said firm had completed audit of affairs of the Company and has given
their report thereupon. Said report constitutes part and parcel of present annual repori.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Your Board had appointed M/s. Jatin Gupta & Associates, New Delhi a firm of Company
Secretaties in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the vear ended 31* March, 2017. The
Secretarial Audit Report is attached as Annexure A,

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 do not contain any gualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. Although the Secretarial Auditor had raised their concern that the Company did not appoint CFO
post retirement of Mr. A S Sihag, then acting CFO and hence had stated same as a maiter of emphasis not qualification,
since it takes time to recruit persons with caliber of acting as CFO.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Auditors’ Report read with notes to the financial staternenis and otherwise are seif-explanatory and does not calt
for any further explanation.

There are no adverse remark in the audit / Cost / Secretarial/ Directors Report for the year.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financiai controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the

Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors, and the reviews performed by Management and

the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Commitiee, your Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal

financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2015-16.

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 (3) (c) and 134 (5} of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board hereby

confirm that:

(il inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 318t March, 2018, the applicable accounting standards
read with requirements set out under Schedule 1ll to the Companies Act, 2013, have been followed and there are
no material departures from the same;

(i) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 315t March, 2016 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended as on that date;

(iiiy the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preveniing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a “going concerm” basis;

(v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financia
controls are considered adequate and are operating effectively; and

(vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that systems are considered adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

_ Your Company’s Participatory Sustainable Development has been an integral part of the Company’s Community
Development Policy. The Company has thus inculcated and adopted an Integrated Sustainability Model, representing
the Social and Environment aspects. The Board has thus constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which presenily comprises Mr. Pundarik Sanyal, Chairman,
Mr. Hemul Shah, Director and Mr. Mihir Devani, Whaole Time Director & CEQ as members.
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The Committee has formulated the CSR policy pursuant to Section 135 and Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 which Company has adopted as its
CSR policy.

As part of its CSR initiatives, the Company has undertaken educational, Healthcare, environment and sanitation projects
in the State of Gujarat.

The above projects are in accordance with Schedule Vi of the Act. The Company has spent  31.66 Lacs towards the
CSR projects during the current Financial Year 2015-16.

The average net profit of the Company, computed as per Section 198 of the Act, during the three immediately preceding
financial years was ¥ 1,548.02 lacs. It was hence required to spend 2 30.96 lacs on CSR activities during the Financial
Year 2015-16, being 2% of the average net profits of the three immediately preceding financiai years.

Furthermore, the annual report on CSR activities of the Company for the year under review is set out in Annexurs B
forming part of this report.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis, in the
ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations
{erstwhile Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges).

During the year, the Company had entered into contracts with Bombay Minerals Limited, Ashapura Minechem Limited,
Ashapura Perfoctay Limited , Ashapura International Limited and Ashapura Foundation related party that is considered
material contract in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. The Policy
on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions are approved by the Board may
be accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://www.orientabrasives.com/QAL%20policies/
Related%20Party%20Transactions%20Palicy.pdf.

There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the year that would
have required Sharehoider approval under the Listing Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are placed before
the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions
which are repetitive in nature. A statement of all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit Committee for
its review on a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.

The Company has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy. The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded
on the Company's website. . '

Details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the accompanying financial staiements. There were
transactions during the year which would require to be reported in Form AOC-2.

Members can refer Note no. 26 to the financial statement which sets out related party disciosures.
The Annual Report on related party contract is annexed herewith as Annexure €.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy, pursuant to Section 134 of the Act. The Audit Commiitee is
mandated to take the control of all the risks and comprises of Mr. Pundarik Sanyal — Chairman, Mr. Hemul Shah-
Direcior and Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra, Director as Member, the Audit committee reviews the key risks, mitigation plans
and progress of the risk management process at periodic intervals.

This Risk Management framework enables identification and evaluation of business risks and opportunities, seeks to
create transparency, minimize adverse impact on business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive
advantage. It also describes the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels.

Major risks identified by business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigation actions on a periodic
basis. Existing control measures are evaluated against the relevant Key Performance indicators.

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board about risk assessment
and management procedures and status. These procedures are periodically reviewed o ensure that the executive
management monitors and controls risks. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for coordinating with the various
heads of Departments with respect to risk identification, assessment, analysis and mitigation. The major risks forming
part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked to the audit universe and are also covered as part of the -
annuat risk based audit plan.

Your Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a
properly defined framework. '
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INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS ADEQUACY AND EFFICACY

The Company has in place an adequate system of internal controls. it has documented policies and procedures
covering all financial and operating functions and processes. These have been designed to provide a reasonable
assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls for ensuring reliability of financial reporting,
monitoring of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses and compliance with regulations.

Necessary checks and balances are in place to ensure that transactions are adequately autheorized and reported
correcty. The internal Auditors of the Company conduct Audits of various departments to ensure that the necessary
controls are in place. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews these and the Company, when needed, takes corrective
actions. :

Details of the internal controls system are given in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part
of the Board’s Report,

DIRECTORS

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT:

Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra was appointed as Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 29"
September, 2015. Pursuant to provisions of Section 181 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra vacates office and is eligible for appointment. Members are requested to refer to item No. 5 of
the Notice of the Annual General Meeting for details.

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) {b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the
Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Rules made there under and are
independent of the management. '

Except Mr. Amar Singh Sihag, CFO of the Company, No Key Managerial Person has been appeinted or has retired or
resigned during the year. As a matter of apprising members as on event occurring after closure of FY 2015-2016, we
are to state that Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Mundra, Company Secretary and Key Managerial Person has resigned w.e.f
30/04/2018.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Hemul Shah retires and is eligible for re-appointment.

A brief resume of the appointee is given in the notice to the Annual General Meeting. Your directors recommend his
re-appointment at the ensuing annual general meeting in the overall interest of the Company.

Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of its Committees and Directors:

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its
Committees.

The Nemination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure arid time schedule for
the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The Board's functioning was evaluated
on various. aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfiliment of key responsibilities, Board structure and composition,
establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information
and functioning. ’

Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/ Commitiee Meetings and guidance/
support to the management outside Board/ Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key
aspects of his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board
members and motivating and providing guidance to the Whole Time Director & CEQC.

Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities,
adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by entire Board, excluding the Director
being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors, who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its Commitiees and of the Directors.

The Chairman of the Board provided feedback to the Directors on an individual basis, as appropriate. Significant high
lights, tearning and action points with respect to the evaiuation were presented to the Board.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR BOARD MEMBERS

On appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of Appointment setiing out in detail, the terms of appeointment,
duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. Each newly appointed Independent Director is taken through
a formal induction program including the presentation from the Director on the Company’s manufacturing, marketing,
finance and other important aspects.
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The Company Secretary and/or COO/CEQO briefs the Director about their legal and regulatory responsibilities as a
Director. The induction for independent Director include interactive sessions with Executive Directors, Business and
Functional Heads, visit to site etc.

The details of such familiarization programme have been displayed on the company's website link: htip./
www.orientabrasives.com/investor_relations.hitm ‘

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other empioyees,
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The policy can also be accessed from the company
websie at www.orfentabrasives.com

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

A calendar of Board and Committee Meetings to be held during the year was circutated in advance to the Directors.
10 (Ten) Board Meeiings were convened and held during the year.

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee with Mr. Pundarik Sanyal as Chairman and Mr. Hemul Shah and
Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra as Members. There have been no instances during the year when recommendations of the
Audit Committee were not accepted by the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board and its Commitiees and of the Meetings held and attendance of the Directors
at such Meetings, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulations.

CODE OF CONDUCT '

The Company has laid down a code of conduct for the directors and senior management personnel. It is available on
the website of the Company www.orientabrasives.com. A declaration by the Whole Time Director regarding annuali
affirmation of compliance of the code by all concerned is annexed to the report on Corporate Governance. With a view
to reguiate trading in securities by Directors, KMP, & Designated Employees, the company adopted a code of conduct
to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders. '
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The industrial relations with staff and workers during the year under review continue to be cordial.

HUMAN RESQGURCES

The Compary’s human resources continue fo be its most valuable asset. The team has remained as commitied as
gver and produced results that are considered significant. Quality, quick delivery and focus on resoclving customer
issues are the hallmark of the team performance.

There is a strong focus on team spirit, during the year, many events/training programs were conducted to deveiop
personality and outlook of its employees. Employee relations continue to be cordial,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT.
A separate section on Corporate Governance is attached to this report as Annexure-G.

A ceriificate from the Whole time Director that all board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended March 31, 2016 is attached as Annexure-H.

A certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated is enciosed as Annexure-l. CEQ/CFO certificate is enclosed as Annexure-J. .

DISCLOSURES:

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Pundarik Sanyal (Chairman), Independent Director, Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra,
Independent Director and Mr. Hemul Shah, Non Independent Director. _

Audit Committee has not on any occasion recommended any suggestions warrariting any suggestion/deliberation.

Number of Board Meeting
The Board of Directors of the Company met 10 (Ten) times in the year, the details of which are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and (5)3 of the companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in terms of provisions of section 136(1)
of the Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information
is available at the corporate office of the company during the working hours and any member interested in obtaining
such information may write to the Company Secretary.
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POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROH!IBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. The Policy aims to provide
protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters
connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure.
“The Company has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee, known as the Prevention of Sexual Harassment
(POSH) Committee, to inquire into complaints of sexual harassment and recommend appropriate action.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2015-16.

No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transaction on these items
during the year under review; :

1. Details relating to depesit and unclaimed deposits or interest thereon.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend or voting.

3. lssue of shares (including sweat equity shares} and Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company under any

schéeme.
4. No si\g‘nificant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going.
concerh and Company’s eperation in future.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees
to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or vioclation of the Company’s Code of
Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of empioyees who avail
of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no
personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism and whistle
blower policy may be accessed on the Company's website at www.orientabrasives.com

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, required
to be made pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure-E and forms part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year, there were no loans, guarantees or investments extended by the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extract of Annual Return in form MGT 9 as per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is set out in Annexure-D forming part of this report.
MANAGEMENT BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes on Management Discussion and Analysis of the company have been given in Annexure-F and forms part of
this report.
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To

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNEXURE-A
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
EOR THE FINANGCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016
Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rute No. 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Members

Orient Abrasives Limited (The Company)
GIDC Industrial Area

Porbandar 380 577

Gujarat

4.

Company No : [24298GJ1971PLC093248

We have conducted, the Secretarial Audit of compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good
corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and accordingly expressing our opinion
thereupon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/s Orient Abrasives Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘Company’) and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. We hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company, has during the audit period covering the financial year ended aon
31.03.2016 complied with various Statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board - Processes and compliance — mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.
We have examined the regisiers, records, books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
as required to be maintained by the Company for the year ended 31.03.2018 according to the provisions of :
i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as ‘Act’} and Rules made there under and various allied acts
warranting compliance;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Reguiation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder :
iili. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye - Laws framed thereunder :
iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1892 ('SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantiai Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 ;
(b} The Securilies and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements),
Regulations, 2009 and amendments from time to time.
{d) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
1}  Mings Act, 1952, Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation} Act, 1957, Mines and Minerals
(Development and Regulation) Amendment Act, 2015, The Mettaliferous Mines Regulations 1961,
Mineral Conservation Rules, 1960 and Gujarat Pollution and Control Board Regulations being
special act/rules/regulations governing the Company.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable ciauses of the following :
() Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect 1o board
and general mestings.
(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, siandards etc. mentioned above.
Based on our verification of books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit. We hereby report that :
i,  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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i. Adeguate nofice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

iii. The Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent and has
complied with the applicable statutory provisions, Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., as
stipulated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made under the Act, and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

5. We further report that:

i.  the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts
and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other Gompanies and interest in other entities;

ii. the Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of the Act where necessary;

iii. there was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company during the year
under review under the Companies Act and rules, regulations and guidelines under these Acts.

iv. Mr. Amar Singh Sihag, CFO, on reaching age of superannuation retired from the Company. The Company
hasn't appointed CFO and it is required to do so as per provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013. Considering applicable provisions and management view that process for recruitment has been initiated
and that such an appointment takes time as post is a vital post, we would like to emphasise upon same, yet
clarify that our report is not qualified for this.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rutes, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letier of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.

Place: New Delhi Jatin Gupta
Date: 28.07.2016 Proprietor
For Jatin Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries
CP No.: 5236
FCS No.; 5651
Annexure A
To,
The Members
Orient Abrasives Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letier.

1. Mainienance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur responsibiiity is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the. process and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4, Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Jatin Gupta

Proprietor

For Jatin Gupta & Associates

Company Secretaries

CP No.: 5236

Place: New Delhi : FCS No.: 5651
Date: 28.07.2016
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ANNEXURE -B
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the F Y 2015-16

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies {Corporate Social

Responsibility} Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs. CSR Policy is stated herein below:
http://www.orientabrasives.com/OAL%20policies/CORPORATE%20S0OCIAL%20RESPONSIBILITY %20
{CSR)%20POLICY .pdf

2. The Composition of CSR Commitiee
1. Mr. Pundarik Sanyal, Independent Director
2. Mr. Hemul Shah, Director
3. Mr. Mihir H. Devani, Whole Time Director & CEO

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: T 1548.62 Lakhs.

4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above} : T 30.96 Lakhs

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year :

{(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year; ¥ 30.96 Lakhs
() Amount unspent, if any : NiL
{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
_  In Lacs)
Sr.; Projects / Activities Sector Amount | Amount | Amount | Cumulative| Amount '
No. Qutlay Outlay Spent |Expenditure;  spent:
Locations| (Budget)| on the upto Direct or
{Budget) | Project of project or; reporting through
Project or|Programs | program | period implementing
Programs| wise agency*
wise
Districts
{State)
1 | Sanitation Programme | Healthcare under item| Porbandar 3.00 3.00 15.96 Direct
no {i)
2 | Educational Programme| Education Promotion |Porbandar 3.00 3.00 3.00 Direct
_ under item no (ii)
3 | Environmental Envirenment under Devbhumi 25.66 25.66 27.66 Direct
programme item no (iv) Dwarka, \
Kutch -and
Porbandar
area ‘
Total 31.66 31.66 46.62

*Details of the implementing agencies-

6.

Annual Report

The Company was required to spend ¥ 45.02 Lakhs during the year including unspent amount ¥ 14.06 lacs
related to earlier year and speni ¥ 31.66 Lakhs on varicus CSR activities. .

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Pollcy, is In compliance:with
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The CSR vision of the Company is “Promotion of Education, Health, Rural Development and help society in
difficult times like natural calamities”.

The Company commits itself to creating a more equitable and inclusive society by supporting processes that
lead to sustainable transformation and rural development. Orient Abrasives Limited, either by itself or through
vibrant and innovative partherships with the Government, NGO’s and Other Organizations, will promote education
and healthcare for all vulnerable sections of society and will undertake rural development initiatives as well as
initiative to help nation to face aftermath of natural calamltles
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The CSR commiitee will pursue these objectives;

1) We will continue o provide medical assistance to needy and poor people directly as well as through NGO's
and also by providing medical equipmeni’s to hospitals.

2)  We will provide assistance o needy and poor students to impart good education through NGO's and other
educational institutions and also by way of providing stationeries including computer etc to schools /
educational institutions.

3) In terms of rural development, we will work with NGO’s or other similar kind of organization to install and
maintain water management facility to provide good and hygienic drinking water in the rural areas.

4)  We will pro-actively support the Government, NGO’s and other similar kind of arganization to help the society
to tackle the aftermath of natural disaster or calamities like floods, earthquake etc.

ANNEXURE - C
Disclosure of particuiars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section {1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions
under third proviso thereto

Form No, AOC-2

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracis or arrangements or transactions not entered at arm’s length basis
NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions at arm’s length basis

Name(s) ot the Nature of Duration Salient terms of Justification for | Date(s) off Amount Date on which the
related party and coniracts of the the ¢ontracts or entering into approval | paid as | special resolution was
nature of farrangements/ { contracts/ arrangements or such contraclts or| by the |advance, passed in general
relationship transactions {/arrangements| transactions including arrangements or Board if any: meeting as reguired
transactions the value, if any transactions under first provise
to section 188
Bombay Minerals Limited Sale / Purchase 12 Months Sales of various materials | A series of sales / 08.08.2015 NIL The Contracts are entered
Agreement having an approximate value | purchase transactions al Arm’s length basis.
Related Party Through ot ¥ 50.15 Crores, in normal course of Therafore no sharehalders'
enterprise having significant Purchase of varicus business. approval is reguired.
influence over the companies| materials having an

approximate value of
¥ 56.15 Crores and payment
of royalty charges around

¥25Lacs
Ashapura Minechem Limited | Sale / Purchase 12 Months Sales of vatious materials 1 A series of sales / 06,08.2015 NIL. The Contracis are entered
Agreement having an approximate value | purchase transactions at Armv's length basis.
Related Party Through of € 7.586 Crores. in normat course of Therefora no shareholders'
entarprise having sighificant - : Purchase of various business. approval is requlred,
influence over the companies materials having an

approximate value of
¥ 7.56 Crores and payment

of other services around
T7or
Ashapura International Purchase 12 Months Purchase of various A series of purchase 06.08.2015 NIL Tha Contracts are entered
Limited Agreement maierials having an transactions in normal at Armv's lengih basis,
approximate value of course of businass. Therefore no shareholders’
Retated Party Through T 5.00 Crores. approval is required,
enterprise having significant
influence cver the companies
Ashapura Perfoclay Limited | Sales Agrsement | 12 Months Sales of various materials | A series of sales 06.08.2015 NIL The Coniracis are entered
having an approximate value | transactions in nomat at Arm's lengih basis.
Refated Party Through of T 5.00 Crores. course of business. Therefore no sharehelders’
enterprise having significant approval is required.

influence over the companies

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Mihir H. Devani

{Whoie Time Director & CEQ)
{DIN-07238089)
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ANNEXURE-D
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration} Rules, 2014,

l. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: -

1. | CIN L24299GJ1971P1L.C083248
2. | Registration Date 12/11/1871
3. | Name of the Company ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED
4. | Category/Sub-category of the Company | Company limited by shares
5. | Address of the Registered office GIDC Industrial Area Porbandar
& contact details : Porbandar 360577 Gujarat
6. | Whether listed company Yes/No Yes :
7. | Name, Address & contact details of the Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. i D-153 A | Ist Floor | Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - | |
New Delhi - 110 020 Tel.: 011 Direct No - 011 - 41044923 |
Fax: +91 11 26812682 | Web:www.skylinerta.com

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of
the total turnover of the company shall be stated) '

s. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. main products / services Product/service company

1 Fused Grains 2391 . 52.92

2 . Monolithics 2391 ' 23.29

3 " Calcined Products ) 2301 1117

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
S. | Name and Address | CIN/GI.N Holding / % of shares | Applicable
No. of the Company Subsidiary/Asscciate held Section
1 Bombay Minerals U14100GJ1253PLCO00699 Associate 30.10 2(6)
Limited ‘

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares heid at the end of %
Sharehelders of the year [As on 31-March-2015] the year [As on 31-March-2016] Change
during
the year
Demat |Physicall Total % of | Demat |Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares | Shares
A. Promoters
{1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 3,05,34,857 — | 3,05,34,857 25.52 1,13,000 — 1,13,000 0.09 -25.43

b) Central Govt,
c} State Govt.(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e} Banks / Fl

) Any other
Sub-total (A} (1) -
(2) Foreign 1,65,315] — 1,685,315 0.14 0.14
a) NRls-individuals
b) Others-Individuals :
¢) Bodies Corp, . 4,67,82,953 — | 4,67,82,953 38,10 |. 39.10

d) Bank /FI
e) Any Other 2,82,97,974 91,520 2,83,89,494 23.73 23.73

Sub-total {(A) (2)
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+{A) (2) 3,05,34,857 —| 3,05,34,857 25.52 | 7,53,59,242 91,520 | 7,54,50,762 63.07 —
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year [As on 31-March-2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of
the year [As on 31-March-2016]

%
Change
during
the year

Demat

Physical| Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

) Banks / FI

1,607,631

5,000 1,12,631

0.09

10,517

5,000

15,517

0.01 -0.008

¢} Cenirat Govt

d) State Govt.(s)

o) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Flls

75,63,766

75,63,766

-6.32

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i} Others {specify)

LTS Investment Fund Lid

32,684,273

32,64.273

2.73 2.73

Foreign Porifolio Investar

69,67,156

69,67,156

5.82 5.82

Sub-total (B}{1):-

76,71,397

5,000 76,76,397

6.42

1,02,41,846

5,000

1,02,46,946

8.58

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

3,70,05,265

26,240} 3,70,31,505

30.85

i) Indian

iiy Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
heolding nominal share
capitali upto ¥ 2 lakhs

1,73,81,297

27,10,318| 2,00,81815

16.79

1,60,47,681

25,086,008

1,85,53,689

15.51 -1.28

fiy Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of

T 2 lakhs

2,10,71,541

2,10,71,541

17.61

67,48,624

67,48,624

-11.97

c) Others (specify)

Mon Resident Indians

16,265,789

2,500 16,28,289

1.36

-1.36

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

HUF

15,868,798

15,86,798

1.33

-1.33

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

18,198

18,198

0.02

-0.02

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Others

86,12,439

26,740

86,39,178

7.22 7.23

Sub-total (B)(2):-

7,86,88,688

27,39,058| B,14,27,946

68.06

3,14,08,744

25,32,748

3,39,41,492

28.37

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

8,83,60,285

27,44,0581 8,91,04,343

74.48

4,16,50,690

25,37,748

4,41,88,438

36.93

C. Shares held by
Custedian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C}

11,68,95,142

27,44,058(11,96,39,200

100

11,70,09,932

26,29,268

11,96,39,200

100

it) Shareholding of Promoters-

Shareholding

S Shareholder's Shareholding at the % change in
N Name beginning of the year at the end of the year shareholding
' during the year
No. of % of total |% of Shares No. of % of total | % of Shares
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of Pledged /
the company | encumbered the company | encumbered
to total to total
) ) shares Shares
15 G Rajgarhia 2,35,80,330 19.71 — 0 0 — ~-19.71
2 | Usha Rajgarhia | . 7,81,882 0.65 — 0 0 — -0.65
3 {Anisha Mittal \ 31,25,522 2.61 —_ 0 0 — -2.61
4 | Bhavna Rajgarhia i 30,47,123 2.55 e 0 0 — -2.56
5| Chetan Navnitlal Shah ! 2000 0 0
&[Chailali Chetan Shah ! 1,11,000 0.09 0.09
7 | Bombay Minerals Ltd. ! 4,67,82,953 39.10 39.10
8 |Himani Chetan Shah ' 1,65,315 0.14 0.14
9| Cura Global Holdings Lid. 2,83,89,494 23.73 23.73
Total - 3,05,34,857 25.52 —_ 7.54,50762 63.07 —_
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iy Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)

SN Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 | At the beginning of the year 3,05,34,857 2552 3,05,34,857 25.52

2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 4,49,15,905 37.55! 4,49,15,905 37.55
3 | At the end of the year 7,54,50,762 63.07| 7,54,50,762 63.07
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs): - '
S. Cumulative
No. _ Shareholding during
Name Shareholding Reason | the year (01-04-15
1o 31-03-16)
No of % of total Increase/ Mo of % of total
Shares at | shares of Date Decrease Shares at  |shares of
Beginning the in Beginning the
(01-04-15) | Company Shareholding (01-04-15) | Company
end of the end of the
year year
{31-03-16}) (31-03-18)
1 | TRINCASS VYAPAAR PVT, LTD. 5865600 4.9 31/03/20186 -1206000 Sale’ 4665000 3.9
4665000 3.9 | 31/03/2016
2 | NEW LEAINA INVESTMENTS LIMITED 4289493 3.59 | 10/04/2015 25323 Purchase 43241816 3.61
’ : 24/04/2015 8342 Purchase 4333158 3.62
14/08/2015 -4333158 Sale 0 0
21/08/2015 4333168 | Purchase 4333158 3.62
4333158 3.62 | 31/03/2016
3 |LTS INVESTMENT FUND LTD. 3264273 2.73 " - - MNIE -
3264273 2.73 | 31/03/2016
4 | ORIENT ABRASIVES LTD. UNCLAIMED
SHARES DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 3064660 2,56 | 10/04/2015 -2000 Sale 3062660 2.56
08/05/2015 5000 Sale 3057560 2.56
22/05/2015 -4000 Sale 3053660 2.55
10/07/2015 -1000 Sale 3052660 2,55
07/08/2015 -2000 Sale 3050660 2.55
21/08/2015 -1000 Sale 3049660 255
2B8/08/2015 869956 Purchase 3919616 3.28
04/09/2015 22141058 Purchase 26060674 21.78
11/09/2015 -1500 Sale 26059174 21.78
16/10/2015 2000 Sale 26057174 21.78
30/10/2015 -2000 Sale 26057174 21.78
13/11/2015 -22125329 Sale 3928845 3.28 |-
20/11/2015 -885685 Sale 3044160 2.54
04/03/2016 =7000 Sale 3037160 2.54
11/03/2016 -2000 Sale 3035160 2.54
18/03/2016 ~1000 Sale 3034160 2.54
25/03/2016 -12000 Sale 302216C 253
31/08/2016{ - 500 | Purchase 3022660 2.53
3022660 2.53 | 31/03/2016
5 |ALOK RAJGARHIA 196133 0.16 | 10/04/2015 -40400 Sale 165733 0.13
17/04/2015 -22000 Sale 13373 0.11
24/04/2015 45135 Sale ) 88508 Q.07
08/05/2015 32843 | Purchase 121441 0.1
15/05/2015 -25000 Sale 96441 0.08
22/05/2015 -13575 Sale 82684 0.07
29/05/2015 -16380 Sale 66304 .06
05/06/2015 -54098 Bale 12206 0.01
31/07/2015 2400000 | Purchase 2412206 202
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ALOK RAJGARHIA 11/12/2015 -25 Sale 2412181 2.02
04/03/2016| ~7074 Sale 2405107 2.01
11/03/2016 -23233 Sale 2381874 1.99
18/03/2016 -20028 Sale 2361846 1.97
25/03/2016 -36760 Sale 2325086 1.94
: 31/03/2016 -20000 Sale 2305088 1.93
2305086 1.93 | 31/03/2016
6 | ASHOK KUMAR RAJGARHIA 28165 0.02 | 08/05/2015 100000 Purchase 128165 0.11
15/05/2015 -70000 Sale 58165 0.05
22/05/2015 -10000 Sale 48165 0.04
31/07/2015 2400000 | Purchase 2448165 2.05
04/03/2016 -198165 Sale 2250000, 1.88
2250000 1.88 | 31/03/2016 '
7 | LGOF GLOBAL OPPORTUNITIES LIMITED 1150000 0.96 | 17/04/2015 B4262 Purchase 1234262 1.03
24/04/2015 170202 Purchase 1404464 1.17
01/05/2015 41388 Purchase 1445852 1.21
1445852 1.21| 31/03/2016
8 | THE GREAT INDIAN TUSKER FUND 0 0 13/03/2016 118146 Purchase 118146 0.89
1188146 0.99 | 31/03/2016
9 | ARVINDBHAI KANTILAL SHAH 899193 0.75 NIL
899103 0.75{ 31/03/2016
10 | DEEPAK HARLALKA 310840 0.26 | 28/08/2015 1769360 | Purchase 2080000 1.74
18/09/2015 -200000 Sale 1880000 157
30/10/2015 -101813 Sale 1778187 1.49
061172015 ~-420811 Sale 1357376 1.13
13/11/2015 -101313 Sale 1256063 1.05
20/11/2015 -200000 Sale 1056063 0.88
27/11/2015 -100000 Sale 956063 0.8
04/12/2015 -50000 Sale 906063 0.76
31/12/2015 «200000 Sale 706063 0.59
18/03/2016 32411 Purchase 738474 0.62
738474 0.62 | 31/03/2016
v} Sharehoiding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel beginning of the year during the vear
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1. | Mr. § G Rajgarhia, Managing Dirgctor
At the beginning of the year 2,35,80,330 19.71 2.35,80,330 19.71
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters (2,35,80,330} {(19.71) | (2,35,80,330) {19.71)
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NI
2. | Mr. Amarsingh Sihag, Chief Financial Officer
At the beginning of the year 8,000 0.01 8,000 0.01
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the (8,000) 0.01 (8,000} 0.01
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. alloiment /
transfer / honus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year NiL NIL NIL NIL
3. | Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Mundra, Company Secretary
At the beginning of the year NIL NIL MNIL NIL
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
-Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity elc.):
At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
4. | Mr. Hemul Shah, Director
At the beginning of the year 8,000 0.01 8,000 0.01
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters -
Shareholding during the year specifying the 49,256 0.03 49,256 0.03
reasons for increase / decrease {e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity efc.):
At the end of the year 57,256 0.04 57,256 0.04
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(¥ In Lacs)
V) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Unsecured DPeposiis Total
Loans excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 2,613.91 254.65 — 2,868.56
i} Interest due but not paid S — — — —
i) Interest accrued but not due 13.22 2.08 — 15.28
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,627.13 256.71 — 2,883.84
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year o —
* Addition 1,320.96 — — 1,320.96
* Reduction 326.17 256.71 — 582.88
Net Change 994.79 256.71 — 738.08
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year .
i) Principal Amount 3,621.92 — — 3.621.92
ii} Interest due but not paid — — — —
i} Interest accrued but not due — — — —
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,621.92 e — 3,621.92
V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTCRS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. | Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

Mihir
Devani

R. K.
Khanna

P. P.
Khanna

S. G
Rajgarhia

Anisha
Mittal

1 | Gross salary WTD

ED

ED

MD

D

{(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17{1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

25,86,376

36,41,495*

43,18,250*

2,08,645"

1.82,580

1,09,37,346

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

2,13,944

11,550

8,31,970

2,25,494

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

4 [ Commission- as % of profit-
others, specify...

5 | Others, please specify

Total (A)

25,86,376

38,55,439

43,29,800

2,08,645

1,82,580

1,11,62,840

Ceiling as per the Act

46,66,515

46,66,515

1,86,66,058

46,66,515

46,66,515

-3,73,32,118

* Excluding gratuity paid on retirement
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B. Remuneration to other directors

SH.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Direciors

Total Amount

Pundarik
Sanyal

Hemui
Shah

Shri Gopal

Anisha

Rajgarhia | Mittal

Sangeeta
Bohra

U K
Khaitan

R S
Bajotia

Independent Directors

Fee for atiending board
commitiee meetings

75,000

30,000

15,000 (45,000

1,65,000

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

75,000

30,000

15,000 145,000

1,65,000

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

75,000

20,000( 20,000

1,15,000

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

75,000

20,000] 20,000

1,15,000

Total (B)=(1+2)

75,000) 75,000

20,000} 20,000

30,000

15,000 145,000

2,80,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

75,000| 75,000

20,000| 20,000

36,000

15,000 {45,000

2,80,000

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEQ -

None K.

CS - Kamlesh

Mundra

CFO - Amar
Singh Sihag

Total

)

Gross salary

{a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

11,25,924

15,91,994

27,17,918

Act, 1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) income-tax

36,750

36 750

income-fax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

11,25,924

16,28,744

27,54,668

Vil

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section
of the
Companies Act

Type

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made,

if any

{give Details)

A,

COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAUL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding -
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ANNEXLIREE

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013, READ WITH (COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS)
RULES, 2014

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Cormpany has made ali efforts to optimize the use of snergy and to minimise its wastage. To ensure minimum
consumplion of energy for a given level of production, operating parameters of production have been standardized.
hsulation materials are also being used to avoid energy loss. The Capital investment on energy conservation
equipments is T 12.91 Lacs.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOYVATION

The Company is constantly trying to provide its customers with products that incorporate latest available technolegy.
Though indigencusly available materials and technology are preferred, efforts are being made, wherever possible, to
make use of best contemporary technology.

During the last three years, the company has not imported any technology.

Ruring the year, the Company has incurred ¥ 300 Lacs on research and development.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGD {%in Lacs)
Particulars 2015-2018 1 2014-2015
Earned 8,012.61 . B23.00
Cutge 297.61 765.29

ANNEXURE-F

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 7

Statements made in this report describing the Company's objective, projections, estimates and expeclations may be
“torward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicabie securities laws and regulations. Important factors that
could make a difference to the Company operations include, among others, sconomic conditions affecting demand/
supply and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in
govemment regulations, tax-laws and other statutes and incidental faciors.

Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might ditfer.

GENERAL AND ECONCMIC REVIEW

India has registered a robust and steady pace of economic growth in Fiscal 2016 as it did in Fiscal 2015. Additionally,
macroeconomic parameaters such as inflation, fiscal deficit and current account balance have exhibited distingt signs
of improvement. Wholesale price inflation has been in negative territory for more than a year and the ali-important
consumer price inflation has declined to nearly half of what it was a few years ago. However, weak growth in advanced
and emerging economies has taken its toll on India’s exports. In an cthanvise gloomy global situation, India is estimatad
io remain the fastest growing major economy in the world with projected growth of 7.5% driven by rising real incomes
and domestic demand. Nevertheless, trade and current account deficits have improved due to relatively lower prices
for crude oil which is imported by india.

The government has underlaken several positive initiatives 10 boost the business ¢limate and improve the ease of
doing business. This includes simplifying business procedures and ax rules, relaxing FDI poficy in many sectors, and
commitiing more public investrnent and developing innovaiive funding avenues for infrastructurs expansion. Key projects
such as ‘Make in India’, “Stait up India’, ‘Digital india’ and *Skili india’ seek to encourage invesiments and improve the
ecosystem at various levels of business activity. Aggrassive roll-out of the Financial inclusion program has made
banking services accessibla to millions of previously unbanked peopls.

Based on these trends and developrments, it iz svident that india is rising as an important beacon of hope for the
global econemy with the aitribuites for susiained growth momentum that could patentially bring vast improvements in
the lives of hundreds of millions of people in our country.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS: -

The Company was incorporated in the vear 1971 and has twe major bhusiness divisions:

The Abrasives Grains Division at Porbandar, Gujarat that manufactures fused alumina oxide Including calcined
products Refraciories Monclithics and the Power division comprising of thermal power plants and wind turbine
generators.
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS/SEGMENTS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review, As mentionad above, the
Company has two major business segments in terms of the nature of output (i) Fused Aluminium Oxide Grains including
Calcined Products and Refractories Monclithics and (i} Electricity (Power Division), which have been elucidated in
the following paragraphs:

ABRASIVE GRAINS & REFRACTORY MONOLITHICS

The Abrasives Grains Division at Porbandar is the iirst manufacturing unit set up by the Company. The Division
manufactures calcined bauxite and fused aluminium oxide abrasive grains. Bauxite and calcined alumina are the
basic raw materials used for the manufacture of abrasive grains. Raw bauxite is procured from mines owned by the
Company and oihers and calcined alumina is purchased from domestic market. These products are used in the
manufacture of refractories and grinding whesls & coated abrasives. The Company manufactures castables &
monolithics used in the cement & sleel industies. It is located in Porbandar, Gujarat.

POWER GENERATION

The Company has a fotal thermal power plant capacity of 18 MW out of which © MW is based ot coal and 9 MW on
furnace oil. The thermal power plant basad on coal is more economical and is operated at full capacity. The electricity
from this power division is meant for captive consumption by the manufacturing division at Porbandar.

The Company also has wind power generation capacity of 11.1 MW. The power generated by these plants is sold to
the respective state power distribution companies.

FINANCIALS OF SEGMENTS
Financials of business segments are given in detail in note 25 (Segment Information) of the Annual Report.
FINANCIALS AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Your Company has effective and adequate internal control systems which ensure reliable and accurate financial
reporting, safeguarding of assets, keeping constant check on cost structure and adhering to management policies.
Company is committed to good corporate governance practices and have well defined systems and processes covering
all corporate functions and units. The internal conirols are commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of our
operations and facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early remedial steps against factors such as loss
from unauthorized use and disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks
and balances which are meani to ensure that ali transactions are authorized, recorded and reporied correctly. The
internal controls are continuously assessed and improved/modified to meet changes in business conditions, statutory
and accounting requirements.
During the year under review the gross turnover of the Company was ¥ 81,131.15 lacs and gross profit & nei profit
were T 3,707.64 lacs & T 2,361.16 lacs respectively. The turnover of the abrasives grains was ¥ 16,474.25 Lacs.
During the year, the Company has seld/exporied bauxite and its value added products amounting to ¥ 20,4564.62
Lacs. During the year under review gross revenue for sale of power {wind energy) was T 666.53 Lacs,

 The internal controls are adequately supported by the internal Audit Team of the Company which objectively and
independently tests the design and operating effectivenass of the internal conirol system 1o provide a credible assurance

_to the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.
The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the Audit function thrgugh regular reviews of the audit findings and
observations and monitoring actions taken.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended dividend of T 0.25 per equity share for the Financial year ended on 31° March, 2016,
payable subject to approval at the ensuing annual general meeting. This will result in a total payout for the year
2015-16 {including dividend distribution tax) of T 359.99 Lacs (X 359.99 lacs in 2014-15) translating into a dividend
payout of 25% (comparad to 25% in the previous year} on consolidated net profit.

Orient believes in maintaining a fair balance between dividend distribution and cash retention. Gash retention is required
for future growth, probable acquisitions and to meet any unforeseen condingencies.

RISK FACTORS

Risks associated with the Company’s Business and Industry:

The manufaciuring industry and the demand thereof are influenced by general economic conditions, including, among
other things, rates of economic growth, credit avaitability, Infrastructure spending, interest rates, environmental and
tax policies, safety regulations, freight rates and fuel and commodity prices. Negative trends in any of these factors
impacting the regions where the Company operates could materialiy and adversely affect the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Orient recognizes that every business have its inherent risks and what is required is a proactive approach to identify
and mitigate them in time, so that they do not impact the business negatively. We try to regularly scan the internal and
external environment to identify risks and decide on possible mitigation measures and costs for overcoming them and
incorporate them in company’s sirategic, business and operational plans. The company has developed systems and
processes to map the risks across segments, producis and geographies and respond effectively to counter them and
achieve the organizational goals. Sustained action is iaken to further sirengthen the system.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Tha Company believes in the strength of human resources and that it is the best form of business capital which neads
to be explored and utilized to full potential. The Company has the vision to establish a reputation for being a people-
ceniric organization in all the regions it operates in and has provided an invigorating work environment, marked by
teamwork, respect for merit and an emphasig on knowledge accretion. The Company recognizes the need for change
management and lalent management throughout the business and just how critical these aspects are to its future
growth and success as any olher element of its commercial strategy. Your Company has several processes in place
to ensure the continual training and growth of its employees over the entire life cycle. Processes are also in place to
attract and recruit talent into the Company.

The Company has elaborate processes in place to prevent discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment.
Whistle Blower Policy is also in place. ‘

At the company, constant efforts are made in developing human resources by providing necessary training and taking
care of employee welfare. The Company endeavors to keep the emplovees’ motivation level high by providing congenial
- work atmosphere and rewarding / remunerating adequately.

The Company has reinforced the capabilities of its workforce through the launch of numerous in-house training
programmes and job-specific training throughout the year. With rapid expansion and advent of new promoters, the
Company has hired several senior and mid-lavel resources to support the next level of growth.

There are cordial relations between the management and the empioyees.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY (EHS)

Safety and Health;

Health and Safety of employees and associates continues to be an area of prime focus. Your Company firmly believes
in Health and Safety being a key Value rather than priority, because priorities may change. Our Value “Safety is a
condition of Employment” and not a choice emphasizes our commitment towards non-negotiable attribute of health
and safety practices and standards. We believe that this kind of approach is core 1o taking safety to higher levels and
our leadership continuously work towards establishing, sustaining and improving the safety culture.

Environment Footprint and Climate change:

Environment sustainability is one of the key elements in our Corporate Sustainability Model. Conservation of energy,
greening of product and environment, reduction and reuse of industrial waste are kay focus areas under environment
initiatives. Climate change has been identified as one of the greatest challenges facing nations, governments, businesses
and citizens in the coming decades. Your Company has laid out systems going beyond regulations, by continuously
woiking on different techriclogies in effluent management to upgrade in its Units.

CONCERNS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK

The Company is oplimistic about increasing profitability on the back of increasing revenue and margins in the near
term. Despite the recent downiurn in Refractory market, and increasing competition from Chinese suppliers, company
is positioned to ieverage its competent resource strength and large production capacity. Further the recent trend of-
declining fuel prices globally will mitigate the margin risks we face as a result of drop in refractory and raw material
© prices & help sustain market share.

To mest increasing domastic and global demand and more stringent quality and environment requirements we are
planning to modemize and expand our production facility using latest technclogy. These projects will help us launch
new products and grades as well and potentially increase margins in increasing products.

A new dedicated team is being developed to explore and export opportunities to the company.

To conclude, the strategic location of manufacturing facility, captive mineral resources and in-house thermal based
power generation facility continue to keep us in a leadership position and we expect our renewed inhovative focus
and efficiency improvement initiatives will contribute to achieve and exceed our objectives. Your Company is able to
maintain/grow market share due to superior product guality and strong brand image. Our focus on innovation ensures
that we stay ahead of competition.
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ANNEXURE-G
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE _

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance ig founded upon a rich legacy of fair, ethical and transparent
governance practices, many of which were in place even before they were mandated by adopting the highest
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. As an organization, the Corporate Governance
‘practices followed by the Company are compatible with reasonable standards and best practices. Through the
Governance mechanism in the Company, the Board along with its Committees undertakes its fiduciary
responsibilities to all its stakeholders by ensuring transparency, fair play and independence in its decision making.
The Corporate Governance philosophy is further strengthened with the adherence to the Business Model as a
methodology for tracking progress on long term stralegic objectives. The Code of Conduct, which articuiates the
values, ethics and business principles, serves as a guide to the Company, its direclors and emplovees and is also
supplemented with an approptiate mechanism to report any concarns pertaining te non-adherence to the Code.
The Company is in full compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("the SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and Listing Agreement (To the extent applicabie). Risk management and internal control process
focus areas continue to meet the progressive governance standards.

The Company believes in empioying the highest slandards of corporate governance practices and policies by
upholding the principies of transparency in transactions, disclosure of information, integrity, social accountability -
and statutory compliance. The Company alsc endeavors to provide qualily service and feedback to its investors,
customers, business associates and the statutory agencies.

The Secretarial Audit Report by a Practicing Company Secretary on the Audit undertaken of the Company’s
secretarial records in respect of compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations
and other applicable regulations and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India for the
period under reviaw is a part of the Annual Repori.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board along with its Commitlees provides leadership and guidance to the Company's management, as also
direct, supervise and contrel the performance of the Company. The Board currently comprises of 5 Directors out
of which 4 Directors (80%) are Non-Executive Directors, including 1 women director. The Board has a Non-
Executive Chairman and 2 Independent Director which comprise of mare than half of the total strength of the
Board. All the Independent Directors have confirmed ihat they meet the ‘independence’ criteria as mentioned
under Regulation 16 (1) (b} of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149 (8) of the Act.

All the Directors as aforesaid have made necessary disclosures regarding their directorships as required under
Section 184 of the Act and on the Committee positions held by them in other companies. None of the Directors
on the Company's Beard hold Directorships in more than 20 companies, including 10 public companies and
none of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members in more than 10 committees or act as chairperson of
maore than 5 commitiees [the committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee] across
all listed entities in which he/she is a Director. All Non-Executive, Non Independent Directors, excluding Whole
Time Director and CEQ of the Company, are liable to refire by rotation. The appointment of the Managing Director
and Executive Directors, including the tenure and terms of remuneration are also approved by the members at
the first meeting after said appoiniment.

The required information, including information as enumerated in Regutation 17(7) read together with Part A of
Schedule |l of the SEBI Listing Regulations is made available to the Board, for discussions and consideration at
the Board Meetings. The Board reviews the dectaration made by the CEO & Whole Time Director and the General
Manager {Finance & Accounts) regarding compliance with all applicable laws on a guarierly basis as aiso steps
faken to remediate insitances of non-compiiance, if any. Pursuant to Regulation 27{2) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company also submiis a quarierly compliance report on Corporate Governance to the Stock
Exchanges including details on all material transactions with related parties, within 15 days from the close of
every quarter. The CEQ & Whole Time Director and the General Manager (Finance & Accounis) have ceriified 1o
the Board, the accuracy of the financial statements and adequacy of internal controls. for financial reporting, in
accordance with Regulation 17 (8) read together with Part B of Schedule il of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
pertaining to CEO and General Manager (Finance & Accounts) certification for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2018.

During the year under review, Ten (10) Board Mestings were held during the year 2015-16 on 16th May, 2015,
oth June, 2015, 8th July, 2015, 15th July, 2015, 6th August, 2015, 27th August, 2015, 29th September, 2015, 3rd
November, 2015, 10th February, 2018 and 30th March, 20186,

The maximum time-gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days,
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All the agenda papers for the Board and Committee meetings are disseminated electronically thereby appreciating
green cause and eliminating circulation of printed agenda papers. The compeosition of the Board, aliendance at
Board Meetings held dwing the Financial Year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting {AGM),
number of direciorshins, memberships/chalirmanships of the Board and Commiitiees of public companies and

their shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2016 are as follows:

Number of Board | Whather
KMeetings during | Attended Number of Number of
Name of the the year last AGM Directorships Commitise positions
Direcior Category 2015-16 held on 29 in other Public held in other public
: S September;  Companies @ Companies #
Meld | AHended 2015 | Chairman! Member | Chairman! Mamber
. Pundarii’ Mon-Execuilve, 16 G Yeg 0 4 1 1
Sanyal {Chairman) | Independant Director
bAr. Shri Gopal Non-Executive Director 10 6 Yes 0 2 g 1
Rajgarhia®
Mr. Hemut Shah® | Non-Executive Director 10 Yes 2 0
Mrs. Sangesta Non-Exscutive 10 2 No c 0
Bohra® Independent Director
Mr. Mihir H. Executive, 10 2 ~ Yes 0 0 0 o
Devani ($)° Whole fime Director
Mr. B S Bajoria® Chairman, 10 5 No 0 2 0 1
Non-Exacutive
independent Dirsctor
Mr. U K Khaitan’ Non-Executive 10 1 No - o 9 0 2
independent Director
Mr. P P Khanna® Executive Director 10 Ne J 0 g
Ms. Anisha Mittalf | Non-Executive Director 10 8 - No 0 ] O
Mr. Maroj C Mon-Executive 10 -.No G 2 0
Ganatra™ Independent Birector
Mr. R K Kharnna!' | Executive, Whole fime i0 G No 0 0 o 0
Director '

]
7.
8
9

1
1

Mr. Hemu! Shah has been appointed as additional director w.e.f. 15

in AGM haid on 28th Sepiembear, 2015,

conclusion of AGM held on 29 September, 2015.

members consent sought and was granted in AGM held on 29 September, 2015,

0. Mr. Manoj C Ganatra ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 8 August, 2015,

Mr. A.5. Bajoria ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 7 Qcicbay, 2015,
Mr. U.K. Khaitan ceases as Director of the company w.ed 15 July, 2015,
Mr. P.P. Khanna ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 15 July, 2015.

Ms. Anisha Mittal ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 7 October, 2015.

1. Mr. RK. Khanna ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 15 July, 2015,

Mr. Pundarik Sanyal has besn appointed as additional director of the company w.e.f. 15 July 2015 and members consent
sougit and was granted in AGM held on 29th September, 2015,

Mr. § G. Rajgarhia ceases as Managing Director and Key Manageriat Personnel of the company w.e.f 15 July 2615,

July 2015 and members consent sought and was granted
Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra has been appointed as independent director w.e.f. 29 September 2015 by Board in its meeting held after

Mr. Mihir H Devanl has been appointed as additional and Whole Time Director of the company w.e.f, 06 August 2015 and

(@) Excludes Birectorships in private companiss, foreign companies, Section 8 comnanies and aliernate direcierships.

(#) Includes only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Commitices

{$) Appointed as the Whole Time and Exscutive Director of the Company with

eftect from August 6, 2015,

As per Regulation 25(1) of the SERI Listing Regulations, none of the Independent Directors serve as Independent
Directors in more than 7 listed entifies and in case they are whole-iime directors in any listed eniity, then he/she
doses no! serve as an independent Director in more than 3 listed entities.
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Annual independent Directors Mesting:

During the year under review, an annual Independent Directors meeting in accordance with the provisions of
Saction 149(8) read with Schedule 1V of the Act and Regulation 25(3) and 25(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
was convened on 10 February, 2018 whersin ail independent Directors were prasent, o review the petformance
of Non-independent Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman of the Board and performance of the Board
as a whole.

Non- Independeni Directors did not parficipate in the meeting.

THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted a set of Committees with speacific terms of reference/scope, 10 focus effectively on the
issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. The Commiliess operate as empowered agents of the
Board as per their Charler/terms of reference. Targets set/ actions directed by them as agresd with the management
are reviewed periodically and mid-course corrections are also carried out. The minutes of the meetings of all
Commitiees of the Board are placed befors the Board for discussions/noting. An Organization Chart depicting the
relationship between the Board, the Committess and senior managemeant functions, as on March 31, 2018, is
illustrated below :

Name of Commiiiee Mame of Commilies Category (Chairperson/Execulive/
members Non-Execulive/independent/Nomines) &
1. Audit Committee 1. Mr. Pundasik Sanval - Chalirperson
: - Non-Execulive
- Independent Directar
: 2. iMre. Sangeeta Bohra - Non-Executive
| ~ indepandent Director
3. Mr. Hemu!l Shah - Non Executive Director
2. Nomination & Hemuneration | 1. Mrs. Sangesia Bohsa - Chairparson
Commitiee - Non-Executive
’ . - Indepandent Dirsctor
2. Mr. Pundarit Sanya! - Non-Exesutive
- Independent Director
3. Mr. Hemyul Shah - Mon Executive Director
3. Risk Management N.A. NLA,
__ Committee (if applicable)
4. Siakeholders Relationship 1. Hemul Shah Chairperson — Non-Executive
Commities’ 2. Mr. Pundarik Sanyal - Non-Execulive
- independent Director
3. . Mihir H Davani - Execulive
- Whole Time Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE: _

The Audit Committee functions according to its Charter that defines s composition, authority, responsibility and
reporting functions in accordance with Sections 177 of the Act, Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule
il of the BEBI Listing Regulations applicalie to the Company and is reviswad from time to time, Whilst, the full
Charter is available on the Company's website.

@

During ithe year, the Commiltes reviewed key audit {indings covering operational, finanecial and compliance
areas. Management personnel presented their risk mitigation plan to the Commitiee. It also reviswed the internal
condrol system, status on compliance of its obligations under the Charter and confirmed that it fulfilled its duties
and respongibilities. The Commiitee, through seli-assessment, annually evaluates its performance. The Chairman
of the Audit Comimittee briefs the Board members about the significant discussions at the Audit Commitiee
meeiings. :

The Committes comprises of 3 members out of which 2 are independent Directors, all of whom are financially
iiterate and have relevant finance and/or audit exposure. Mr. Pundarik Sanyal is Financial Experi. The guorum
of the Commiltee is two members or one-third of #ts members, whichever is greater. The Chairman of the Audit
Commitiee also atiended last AGM of the Comipany. During the period under review, 4 Audit Commitiee meetings
ware held on 18th May, 2015, 8ih August, 2015, 3rd November, 2015 and 10ih February, 2016, The maximum
gap betweaen any two meetings was less than 120 days.
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The details of compaosition of the Audit Committee and attendance of Members are as follows:

Mame Category Number of Meeting during
the year 2015-2016

Held Attended
Mr. R S Bajoria’ Independent, Non-Executive 4 1
Mr. U K Khaitan (Chalrman) Independent, Non-Executive 4 1
Mr. Mang] C Ganatra® independent, Non-Executive 4 0
Mr. Pundarik Sanyal {Chairman) | Independent, Non-Executive 4 3
Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra Independent, Non-Executive 4 2
Mr. Hemul Shah Mon-Executive Director 4 3

1. Mr. R.S. Bajoria ceases as Direclor of the company w.ef 7 October, 2015.
2. Mr. UK. Khaitan ceasses as Director of the company w.elf 15 July, 2015,
3. Mr. Mano} C Ganatra ceases as Director of the company w.e.f 6 August, 2015.

The Commiitee relies on the expertise and knowledge of Management, Internal Audit Team and Statutory
Auditors in carrying out its responsibilites. Managemeni is responsible for the preparation, presentation and
integrity of the Company’s financial reporting. Management is also responsible for internal control over
financial reporting and all procedures are designed to ensure compliance with Accounting Standards,
applicable laws and regulations as well as for objectively reviewing and evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness
and guality of the Company’s system of internal control. The Company Secrelary acts as the Secretary of
the Audit Commitiee, as well as all other Commitiees of the Company. The Chief Internal Auditor repoits
directly to the Audit Commitiee to ensure independence of the Internal Audit function.

M/s SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants {having registration no. 324982E), the Company’s Statutory
Auditor, is responsible for performing an independent audit of Financial Statemenis and expressing an
opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with accounting principies generally accepted in
India.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company functions according to its Charter, that
defines its objective, composition, meeting requirements, authority and power, responsibilities, reporting and
gvaluation functions in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule
Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, which are reviewed from time to time.

The broad terms of reference of the NRC are as follows :

The terms of reference of committee, inter-alia consists of :

*»  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director;

o Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Direciors and the Board;

s Devising a policy on Board diversity;

° Formulate and recommend to the Board a policy for payment of remuneration to Managing Director, Non-
Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personne! eic. and its review from time fo time.

*  Periodically review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of Managing Director and Key
iManagerial Personnel under the provisions of Companies Act.

+ Decide the actual salary, allowances, perquisites, retrials and increments of Managing Director/Manager
under the Companies Act.

+  Decide the amount of commission payable io Managing Director/Manager under the provisions of Companies
Act.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place a Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and other employees, in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and SEB! Listing Regulations. For details on Remuneration Policy, including the criteria
for making paymenis to the Non-Executive Directors Kindly refer io the Annexure to the Board’s Report
The non-executive directors are paid sitting fees for the board and committee meeatings attended by them. The
sitling fees being paid is 10,000/~ per board meeting and 5,000/- per commiites meeting. The non-executive
directors are not paid remuneration in any other form.

The remuneration by way of commission to the Non Executive Directors is decided by the Board and distributed
to them based on their participation and contribution at the Board and certain Committee meetings as well as
time spent on matters other than at meetings. No Commission was paid to any Non-Executive Director for FY
2015-16.
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The Company has not issued any stock option scheme to its employees or directors. Details of the remuneratiory
sitting fees to directors for year ended March 31, 2016:

{a) Non-Executive Directors {Amount in ¥)

Name Sitting Fees
Mr. Pundarik Sanyal 75,000
Mr. Shri Gopai Rajgarhia . 20,000
Mr. Hemui Shah 75,000
Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra 30,000
Mrs. Anisha Mittal 20,000
-Mr. R. 3. Bajoria 45,000
Mr. U. K. Khaitan 15,000

{b} Managing Director and Executive Directors {Amount in I

Annual Report 3

Benefits
Name Salary Perquisites and Contribution Total
Allowances to PF Remuneration
Mr. Mihir H Devani 25,86,376 24,999 1,76,400 27,87,775
{(Whole Time Director)

The remuneration paid to the Whole Time Director is commensurate with industry standards and Board level
positions held in simitar sized companies, taking into consideration the individual responsibilities shouldered by
them and is in consonance with the terms of appointment approved by the Members, at the time of their
appointment. The NRC, reviews and recommends to Board, changes in managetrial remuneration of the Executive
Directors on a yearly basis. This review is based on the performance of the Company and the individual director
on certain defined qualitative and quantitative parameters such as volumes, EBITDA, cash flows, cost reduction
initiatives, safety, strategic initiatives and special projects as decided by the Board vis-a-vis targets set in the
beginning of the vear. incentive remuneration paid/payable is subject to the achievement of certain performance
criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from time to time by the Board. An indicative
list of factors that the NRC and the Board takes into consideration for determining the extent of incentive
remuneration are the Company’s performance on ceriain defined qualitative and guantitative pararneters, industry
benchmarks of remuneration and performance of individual. For details pertaining to Managerial Remuneration
paid to the Managing and Executive Directors, the terms of their appointment and the Remuneration paid to the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors during FY 2015-16, kindly refer to the Notice of the AGM and the Board's
Report. The Company does not have an Employee Stock Option Scheme.

The NRC comprise of Mr. Pundarik Sanyal, Mr. Hemul Shah and Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra acts as Chalrperson of the
Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 (Once) during the year on 6th August, 2015,

STAKEHGLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakehoiders Relationship Committee functions in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation
20 read with Part D of Schedule I} of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee comprises of 2 Independent
Directors and 1 Whole Time Director comprising of:

=  Mr. Hemul Shah, Chairman

e Mr. Pundarik Sanyal

. Mr. Mihir H Devani

and is empowered to :

e Monitor redressal of investors/shareholders grievances;

= Approve transfer and transmission of shares;

® Issue of duplicate share certificates;

*  Approving of split and consolidation requests;

*  Review of shares dematerialized; :

=  Qversee the performance of the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents;

s All other matters related to shares.

The Committee mestings are held as and when required. Four (4) meetings of the Committee were held during
the year.
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Details of investor compiainis recetved anhd redressed during the year 2015-16 are as follows:

Opening Balance ~ Received during the vear Resolved Closing
during the vear Balance
0 g g ‘ 0

Name, designation and address of the Compliance Officer :

Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Mundra Company Secretary #

Orient Abrasives Limited, G.1.D.C, Porbandar, Gujarat
# resigned w.e.f 30/04/2018

Telephone : +91 11 26425448/7

Fax : 491 11 26443859

a-mail : investor@oalmail.co.in

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee was constituted by Board in accordance with the Act to ;

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Respensibility Policy which shall indicate the
activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VI of the Act; Recommend the amount
of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in the above point; and Monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time. The CSR Policy is uplocaded on the Company's website
as required under the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Sccial
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, The CSR commitiee comprises of 3 Members cut of which 1 is an
Independent Director and 1 Whole-time Director. During the year under review, Two (2) meetings of the
Committee were held on 6th August, 2015 and 10th February, 2018, The composition of the CSR Committee
and attendance at its meeting is given hereunder: '

Name Category Number of Meeting during
the year 2015-2016

Held ' Attended
Mr. Pundarik Sanyal Chairman, Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Hemul Shah Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Mr. R S Bajoria’ independent, Non-Executive 2 0
Mr. Mihir Devani ' ' Member, Whole Time Director 2 1

1. hr. A.5. Bajoria ceases as Director, hence mamber w.ef 7th October, 2015.

Risk Management Commiitee is constituted and functions as per Regulation 21 of the SEB! Listing Reaulations,
The Audit Committee is mandated to take the control of all the risks and comprises of Mr. Pundarik Sanyal —
Chairman, Mr. Hemul Shah-Director as Member and Mrs, Sangesta Bohra, Director as Member, the Audit
commitiee reviews the key risks, mitigation plans and progress of the risk management process at periodic
intervals. :

This Risk Management framework enables identification and evaluation of business risks and opportunities, seaks
to creale transparency, minimize adverse impact on business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive
advantage. It also describes the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels.

Maijor risks identified by business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigation actions on a
periodic basis. Existing control measures are evaluated against the relevant Key Performance Indicators.

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board about risk assessment
and management procedures and status. These procedures are periodically reviewed 1o ensure that the exscutive
managemsant monitors and conirols risks. The internal Audit Department is responsible for coordinating with the
various heads of Departmenis with respect fo risk identification, assessment, analysis and mitigation. The major
risks forming part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked to the audit universe and are also covered
as part of the annual risk based audit plan. )

Annual Report 32 e 3015 - 2016



ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

CODE OF CONDUCT: Code of Conduct is appiicable to all Whole-time Directors and employees of the Company,
the Board has also adopted a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Pursuant
to Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, all members of senior management have confirmed that
there are no material, financial and commercial transactions wherein they have a personal interest that may have
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI Listing
Reguiations, all the Board members and senior anagement of the Company as on March 31, 2016 have affirmed
compliance with their respective Godes of Conduct. A Declaration to this effect, duly signed by the GEO and
Wholetime Director is annexed hereio.

GENERAL BODY MEETING

() Annual General Meeting

New Delhi— 110 024

Details Date Time Venue Special Resolution
42 July 18, Hindi Bhawan
Annual General 2013 11, Vishnu
Meeting _ Digambar Marg
<Et' (Near Bal Bhawan) None
= New Delhi - 110 002
43 September 24, - Sun Village inn, 1. Approving the Borrowing limit of
Annual General 2014 A-i4, Ring Road, Rs. 300 crores.
Meeting Lajpat Nagar-IV. 1o Approvai of mortgage of assets of
New Delhi— 110 024 the company
44t September 29, Sun Village Inn, |1. To replace the articles of
Annual General 2015 A-14, Ring Road, association as per Companies
Meeting Lajpat Nagar-IV, Act, 2013.

2. To ratify and approve related

party transactions entered with
Orient Refractories Ltd.

3. To ratify and approve related
party transactions entered with
Bombay Minerals Lid.

4. To ratify, confirm and approve the
remuneration of Mr. P.P. Khanna
Executive Director during the
period from 02 May 2015 to 15"
July, 2015, who has resigned
w.e.f 15 July, 2015.

5.. To appoint Mr. Mihir H Devani as
Whole time Director for a period
of 3 years w.e.f, 6/08/2015 to
5/08/2018.

12.30 P.M.

All resolutions moved at the last AGM were passed by means of electronic and physical voting, by the requisite
majotity of members attending the meeting. None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing
AGM require the passing of a special resolution by way of postal ballot. There was a resolution passed by Postal
Baliot during the year under review, for shifting of registered office of the Company from NCT of Delhi to Gujarat.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ETC., NEWSPAPERS WHERE PUBLISHED

- Quarterly Financial statements were eariier published in “Business Standard’. Due to the shifting of the
registered office to Gujarat, they are now published in ‘Gujarat Samachar’ and ‘Business Standard’.

- The results are made available to individual members through e-mail/courier/fax on specific requests.

- The resulis are also sent to the institutional investors/financial analysts cn request.

- The financial results from the quarter ended 30th June, 2005 onwards are also available on the Company’s
website - www.orientabrasives.com

- The Company does not send halif year financial reports tc the members individually.

- Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms an integrai part of the Direciors’ Report.

The Annual Report, Quarterly Results, Shareholding Pattern, Press Releases, Intimation of Board Meetings and

other retevant information of the Company are posted through BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre and

the NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) portals for investor information.

2015 - 2016
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8. CEO/CFO
Mr. Mihir Devani Whole Time Director and CEO and Mr. Hari Swaroop Goyal General Manager {Finance &
Accounts), have given the certificate on the integrity of the financial statements and other matters of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 was placed before the Board at its meeting held on 26th May, 2016.

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual Report

Annual General Meeting
Date

Time
Venue

Financial Calendar

Financial Year

AGM in

Quarterly Results

1% quarter ended on June 30, 2018

2™ quarter ended on September 30, 2016
34 quarter ended on December 31, 2016
4% quarter ended on March 31, 2017

Date of Book Closure/Record Date

Dividend Payment Date.

_Listing on Stock Exchanges

Stock Codes/Symbol
National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Corporate Identification Number {CIN)
of the Company

28" September 2016
10:00 A.M.

Hotel Lords Eco Inn Porbandar (A Unit of Delite Enterprises),

Near Circuit House, Chaupati, Porbandar - 360575

March 31
September

on or before August 15, 2016

on or before November 15, 2016
on or before February 15, 2017
on or before May 15, 2017

from Tuesday, 20 September 2016 to
Wednesday, 28" September 2016 (both days inclusive)

The final dividend, if declared, shall be paid/ credited
by 27th October, 2016.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
25" Figor, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

ORIENTABRA
504879

Listing Fees as applicable have been paid.

L24299GJ1871PLC093248
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Market Price Data:
Monthly High, Low, volume and turnover during each month of the last financial year 2015-186,

Bombay Stock Exchange (data from www.bseindia.com)

Month High (%) Low (%) Volume Trunover
(T in Lacs)

Apr-2015 26.55 23.25 1417 82.70
May-2015 26.50 24.00 1407 15417
Jun-2015 26.50 24 35 2860 370.05
Jul-2015 26.60 25.90 1874 427.55
Aug-2015 27.90 25.20 3832 1477.00
Sep-2015 31.40 22.60 3496 24522
Qct-2015 30.80 26.85 1133 79.41
Nov-2015 38.90 27.50 12170 759.33
Dec-2015 58.00 " 35.40 13368 962.65
Jan-20186 58.90 38.85 12205 605.82
Feb-2016 50.00 39.00 4547 187.93
Mar-2016 53.55 40.50 3590 202.69
National Stock Exchange (data from www.nseindia.com)

Month ’ High ®) Low (%) Volume Turnover

(¥ in Lacs)

Apr-2015 26.70 23.20 763151 188.63
May-2015 26.60 24.05 1005697 254.93
Jun-2015 26.40 24.40 2909942 74412
Jul-2015 26.90 25.90 5451935 1436.99
Aug-2015 27.85 26.50 8226237 2256.15
Sep-2015 30.65 22.30 1845516 516.27
Oct-2015 30.45 26.75 396877 114.14
Nov-2015 39.90 27.90 3131074 1057.47
Dec-2015 57.30 35,25 3297187 1602.73
Jan-2016 58.80 56.25 2048854 1040.33
Feb-2016 49.90 42.50 937480 412.97
Mar-2016 ' 53.50 39.15 2233111 1112.19

Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex:
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Perfermance of the share price of the Company in comparisen to the NSE Nifty:
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Registrar & Sharve Transfer Agenis
Name and Address

Telephone
Fax
E-mail

Websiie

Share Transfer System

Transfer of these shares is doe through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. Transfer of shares
in physical form is normally processed with in ten to twelve days from the date of receipt, if the documents are
compiete in all respects. The senior executives and the company secretary are severally empowered to approve

transfers.

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - |,
New Delhi - 110 020

491 11-26812682,83, 30857575 (10 Lines)

+91 1

-30857562

admin@ skylinerta.com,
grievances @skylinerta.com

www.skylinerta.com

Shareholding as on March 31, 2016:

Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2018

Number of Shareholdars %' age Shares Total %' age
shares number of total number | Physical NSDL CosL Shares '
1-5000 11119 94.3728 1740748 5314820 1999976 9055544 | 7.5690
5001 - 10000 365 3.0979 394000 1729646 636712 2760358 | 2.3072
10001 - 20000 178 1.5108 2350000 1830330 536504 2601834 | 2.1747
20001 - 30000 30 0.,2546 24000 471763 284114 779877 | 0.6519
30001 - 40000 29 0.2461 38000 825654 74000 1005654 | 0.8406|
40001 - 50000 8 0.0679 0 338773 42381 381154 | 0.3186
50001 - 100000 27 0.2292 199520 1321977 373045 1894542 | 1.5835
100001 - Above 26 0.2207 0 95386324 5773913 101160237 | 84.5544
GRAND TCGTAL 11782 100.00% 2629288 107289287 9720645 1196398200 {100.00%
Annuai Report 36

2015 - 2016



ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Categoi‘ies of equity shareholders as on March 31, 2016

Category Number of Percentage of
shares hield holding
A. | Promoter and Promoter Group '
- Individual/HUF 2,78,315 0.24
- Bodies Corporate 7,51,72,447 62.83
Total (A) 7,54,50,762 63.07

B. | Public Shareholding
- Mutual Funds/UTi
- Financial Institutions/Banks 15,517 0.01
- FiPs
- Bodies Corporate
- Individuals

{a) Nominal share capital up to ¥ 2 Lakhs 1,85,53,688 15.51

{b) Nominal share capital in excess of ¥ 2 Lakhs 67,48,624 5.64
- Any Other

(a) NRi

(b} HUF/AOPs

(c} Clearing Members

{d) Trancass Vyapaar Pvt. Lid. 46,65,000 3.90
{e)} Orient Abrasives Lid. Unclaimed Shares Demat
Suspernise Account 30,22,660 2.53
() New Leaina Invesiments Limited 43,33,158 3.82
{g) LGOF Global Opportunities Limited 14,45,852 1.21
{n) LTS Investment Fund Lid, 32,684,273 2.73
{iy Gthers 21,39,665 1.78
Total (B) 4,41,88,438 36.93

GRAND TOTAL {A + B) 11,96,39,260 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are avaitable for trading on both
the depositories in India viz. National Securities Depository Limited {(NSDL} and Ceniral Depository Services
{India} Limitedt (CDSL). Eguity shares of the Company representing 97.71% of the Company’s equity share
capital are dematerialized as on March 31, 2016.

The Company’s equity shares are regularly traded on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited, in dematerialized form.

Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number {(ISIN) allotted to the Company’s
shares is INEBSICE1020.

Quistanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Converiible instrumentis, conversion date and likely
impact on eguity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and hence
as on March 31, 2016, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible
instruments.

Trangier of Unpaid/Unciaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Fursuant to Sections 2054 and 2050 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 19586, all
unciaimed/unpaid dividend periaining te the Company remaining unpaid or unclaimed for period of seven
years from the date they became due for payment, have been transterred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. No claim shall lie against IEPF or Company
for the amounts so transterred nor shall any payment be made in respect of such claims. Members who have
not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the financial years 2008-09 and cnwards, are requasted to
make their ciaims without any detay 1o the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Skyline Financial Services
Frivate Limited.
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The following table gives information relating to outstanding dividend accounts and the dates by which they can
be claimed by the shareholders :

Financial Year Date of Declaration Due Date of Transfer to IEPF
2008-08 ' August 03, 2009 September 09,2016
2009-10 August 05, 2010 September 10, 2017
2010-11 _ March 09, 2011 April 14, 2018
201112 September 24,2012 October 31, 2019
2012-13 July 18, 2013 © August 24, 2020
2013-14 September 24, 2014 October 31, 2021
2014-15 September 29, 2015 November 4, 2022

Unclaimed Suspense Demat Account

In accordance with Listing Agreement, an Unclaimed Suspense Demat Account has been opened with Stock
Holding Corporation of India Limited and ail equity shares in physical form lying unclaimed pursuant to Public/
Rights/Bonus issued by the Company have been dematerialized and credited to said Demat Account. Whenever
any request for said unclaimed shares is received, equity shares either in electronic or physical forms is issued
to the claimant concemed after debiting said Demat Account.

Particulars Mo. of No. of Shares
Shareholders
Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding Shares credited to 0 0

Unclaimed Suspense Demat Account during the Financiaf Year

Number of Sharshoiders who appreoached issuer for transfer of Sharas from 20 42500
Suspense Account during the financial year

Number of Shareholders to whom Shares were transferred from Suspense 20 42500
Account diuring the financial year

Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding Shares in the 1'483 3022160
Suspense Account lying at the end of the financial year

Plant L.ocation:
Abrasive Grains & Power Division : GIDC Industrial Area

Porbandar
Gujarat — 360 577

Address for correspondence;
Orlent Abrasives Limited
GIDC, Porbandar, Gujarat

Telephone : 0286 - 2221788-9

Fax T 0286 - 2222719

e-mail : investor@oalmail.co.in
website ; - www.orientabrasives.com
10, DISCLOSURES

All the transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. In
terms of applicable Clauses of Listing Agreement the Company staried obtaining prior approval of the audit
committee for entering into any transaction with refated parties. The audit commitiee granted omnibus approval
for certain transactions to be entered into with the related parties, during the vear.

There are no related party transactions entered inte by the Company with its Promoters, Directors or
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. which had potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at farge. The register of contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are inlerested is placed before
the Board reqularly for its approval. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in Note 26 to the
financiai statements in the Annual Report.
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A firm of qualified Practicing Company Secretaries carried out a Share Capital audit to reconcile the total
admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share capial. The said report confirms
that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the
fotal number of dematerialized shared held with NSDL and CDSL.

Pursuant to Regulation 61(4) read together with Regulation 40({9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a Company
Secretary-in Practice certificate is filed with the stock exchanges within one month from the end of each half
of the financial year, certifying that all certificates are issued within thirty days of the date of lodgment for
transfer, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, exchange or endorsement of calls/ allotment monies,

The Company has complied with various rules and regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securities
and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authority relating to the capital markets during the last 3
years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed by them on the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to the Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013, every listed company shall establish a vigil
mechanism for their directors and empioyees to report their genuine concerns. Apart from the Vigil Mechanism
listed company has to establish / update it's whistle blower mechanism enabling stakeholders, including
individual employees and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or
unethical practices.

Accordingly company has established VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY that has approved
by the Board of Directors wide their meeting held on 6 August 2014.

A vigil mechanism shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such
mechanism and also make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate
or exceptional cases.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business
operations and in order to maintain these standards, the Company encourages its employees who have
genuine concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of
punishment or unfair treatment.

The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees to avail
ot the mechanism via Vigilance Office and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
in exceptional cases. The detailed process is described in the policy iiself that is hosted and available at the
company website as well as at the registered office of the company.

ANNEXURE-H

DECLARATION BY CEO UNDER REGULATION 26(3) READ WITH PARA D OF SCHEDULE V OF THE SEB!
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING
ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Fursuant to Regulation 26(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance to their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2016.

For Orient Abrasives Limited

Sd/-

Mihir H. Devani
Whole Time Director & CEOQ
(DIN-07238089)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 69.08.2016
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ANNEXURE -1
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPQORATE GOVERNANCE TO THE MEMBERS
OF ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED
We have axamined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Crient Abrasives Limited (‘the
Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2016, as stipulated in Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement of the Company
with the Stock Exchanges (“Listing Agreement”} for the period April 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015 and Heguiations 17
to 27, clauses (b} to (i) of sub-regulation {2) of Reguiation 48 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015 (* SEB] Listing
Regulations” for the period December 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016, The compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was iimited to the review of procedures and
impiementation thereof, ag adopted by the Gompany for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance. it Is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. In our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made
by the Directors and the management, we cerlify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Govemnance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement and the SEB! Listing Reguiations appiicable for the respective periods
as mentioned above. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For Jatin Gupia & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place : New Delhi Sd/-

Date : July 28, 2018 Jatin Gupta
FOS 5651, CP 5236

ANNEXURE-J

' CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

We, Mihir Devani, Whole Time Director & CEQ and Hari Swaroop Goyal, General Manager {Finance & Accounts)

of Qrient Abrasives Limited, hereby cenriify that:

A.  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that fo the best of ocur
knowledge and belief: _

{1} These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any materiai fact or contaln -
statements that might be misleading;

(2) These statements together present a frue and fair view of the Company’s afiairs and are in compliance
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, o the best of our knowledge or belief, no transactions entsred intc by the Comipany during the
vear which are fraudulent, illegal and viclative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disciosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operations of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and steps have been taken or is propossd to be taken io
rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commitiee:

{1) That there are no significant changes in the internal control aver financial reporting during the year.

{(2) That there are no significant changes In the accounting policies during the year.

{3) That we are not aware of instances of any significant fraud with involvement therein of the management
or any employee having any significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
For Orient Abrasives Limited
Sdf- Sd/-
flihir Devani Hari Swaroop Goyal
Whole Time Direcior & CEC ' General Manager
Place: Mumbai . (Finance & Accounts)

Date : 09.08.2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of QOrient Abrasives Limited
Report on the Financial Staiements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Orient Abrasives Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Baiance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

KManagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequaie internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completenass of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken inio
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, as
specified under Section 143(10} of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether he financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due ia fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control rélevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, An
audit aiso Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2016, its profit and its cash fiows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the
maiters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by secticn 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

u

We have sought and obfained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from being
appoinied as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this

" report;

{Q)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given io us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 38 to the financial statements:

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material forseeable losses.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sdf-

per Arpit K Patel

Partner

Membership Number: 34032

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: May 26, 2016
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ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

ANNEXURE REFEFRRED TO IN PARAGRAPH ON REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS OF QUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Orient Abrasives Limited (“the Company”)

() {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonabie having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. in our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. Inventories
lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2016 and no material discrepancies
were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

(iii) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liabiiity Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), (b}
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv} in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. '

(v) The Company has'not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the
Centrai Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related
to the manufacture of aluminium oxide grains, calcined products and monolithics, and generation of power, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same. :

{vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it have
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit of income tax, provident
fund and service tax have not been serious.

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a pericd of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom , value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Forum where dispute
statute {in T lacs) _is pending
Customs Act, 1962 Differentiat custom duty on account of 37.68 Commissioner of Customs

misclassification on import of coal. {Appeals})
Customs Act, 1962 | Differential custom duty on account of 16.83 | Commissioner of Customs
misclassification on import of coal. (Appeals)
Customs Act, 1962 | Redemption fine in lieu of confiscation w/s 1.59 Additional Commissioner of
125 of the Act ‘Customs
Gujarat Value Demand against non-submission 22.01 Commissioner Appeals,
Added Tax Act, 2003 of C-Form Junagadh
income Tax Penaity proceedings for error made in the 10.64 | Commissioner of income
Act, 1961 return filed by the Company for the _ Tax {Appeal)
assessment year 2006-07
Income Tax Disallowance of various expenses/deductions 867.12 | Commissicner of Income
Act, 1961 {under section 80IA} claimed by the Company Tax {Appeal)
for the year 2008-09 alongwith the penalty
proceedings of the same
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income Tax Pena'lty procaadings for error made in the 36.85 | Commissioner of income

Act, 1961 return filed by the Company for the Tax (Appeal)
assessment year 2009-10 _
income Tax Disallowance of various expenses/deductions 133.17 | Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 (under 'section 80iA) claimed by the Company Tax {Appeal)
for the year 2010-11
Income Tax Disallowance of various expenses/deductions 195.11 Commissioner of income
Act, 19861 (under section 80IA) claimed by the Company Tax (Appeal)
for the year 2011-12 _
income Tax Disallowance of various expenses/deductions 49.92 Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 {under section B0IA) claimed by the Company Tax {Appeal)
for the year 2012-13 ‘
Income Tax Disallowance of deductions {under section 76.28 | Assessing Officer
Act, 1961 801A) claimed by the Company for the year
. 2014-15

(viii) According to ihformation and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of
a financial institution or debentures during the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any money
way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix)
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

{(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud
on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been
paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, ‘

{xi)) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commenied upor.

- {xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on an overal] examination of the Balance sheet,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicabie
to the company and, noi commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies
Act, 2013.

{xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Resetve Bank of
India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. ’

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Registration Number: 324932E/E300003

Sd/-

per Arpit K Patel

Partner '
Membership Number: 3403

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: May 26, 2016
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CORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Conirois under Clause (§) of Sub-section 3 of Seciion 143 of the Cbmpanies Act, 2013
{“the Act”)

To the Members of Orient Abrasives Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls cver financial reporting of Orient Abrasives Limiled (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 20158 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statemenis of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financiai Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintalning internal financial controls based on the internal controf
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate inlemnal financial controls that were
oparating effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibiiity is to express an opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial confrols, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financiai Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obfaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intarnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporling.

Meaning of Internai Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporiing

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financiai reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s Internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispasition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitattons of intsrmal financial controis over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evalyation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respecis, an adequate internal financial conirols system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential componenis of internal confrol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india.

ForSRB C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

per Arpit K Patel

Partner

Membership Number: 34032

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Pate: May 26, 2018
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@ ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016

(Amount In ¥ Lacs)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 1,196.52 1,196.52
Reserves and Surpius 4 16,337.37 14,336.20
17,533.89 15,5632.72
Nen-current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 - -
Deferred tax liability (net) 6 1,196.51 922.20
Long-term provisions 10 141.83 136.95
Other long-term liabilities 7 16.09 22.67
1,354.43 1,081.82
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 3,621.92 2,557.67
Trade payables :
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and
Small Enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditor other than 9
Micro and Small Enterprises 3,898.84 2,164.86
Other current liabilities 9 510.53 876.09
Short-term provisions 10 597.97 390.12
8,629.26 5,988.74
Total 27,517.58 22,603.28
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
. Tangible assets 11 9,501.64 10,097.68
Capital work-in-progress ‘548.52 123.51
intangible assets under development 51.90 -
-Loans and advances 12 553,70 1,138.91
Other non current assets 13 197.83 134.86
10,853.59 11,494.96
Current Asseis
inventories 14 7,114.85 6,673.07
Trade receivables 15 8,085.45 3,616.14
Cash and bank balances 16 311.30 153,11
Loans and advances 12 1,067.20 642.47
Other current assets 13 95.18 123.53
16,663.99 11,108.32
Total 27,517.58 22,603.28
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC &Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

' 8df-

per Arpit K Patel
Partner

Membership Ng. 34032
Place: Ahmedabad
Date : May 26, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

QOrient Abrasives Limited

Sd/-

Mihir Devani
Whole Time Director
DIN : 07238089

Sd/-
Hemul Shah
Director

DIN : 00058558

Sd/-

GM Accounts & Finance

Place : Mumbai Hari Swaroop Goyal
Date : May 28, 2016
48

Annual Report

2015 - 2016



@ ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2016

{Amount in ¥ Lacs)

Notes For the year ended  For the year ended
ifarch 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
INCOME
Revenue from operations {gross} 17 31,131.15 20,427.24
Less : Excise duty 2,501.38 2,136.48
Revenue from: operations (net) 28,629.77 18,290.76
Other Income 18 205.64 90.27
Total (i) 28,835.41 18,381.03
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 19 6,768.72 5,650.77
Purchase of trading materials 474,47 -
{Increase) in inventories 20 {354.70) (893.55)
Employee benefits expenses 21 2,223.20 1,897.46
Depreciation and amortization expense 11 896.22 1,059.07
-Other expenses 22 14,779.41 8,668.67
Finance costs 23 340.45 275.71
Total (Il) 25,127.77 16,667.13
PROFIT BEFORE TAX {i-1i) 3,707.64 1,713.90
TAX EXPENSE
Current tax (Refer Note 40) 803.00 577.45
Tax relating to earlier years, charge / (written back) 269.18 (44.45)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 274.30 (50.02)
Total tax expense 1,346.48 482.98
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,361.16 1,230.92
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
[Nominal value of share Re. 1 (Previous year Re. 1)] :
Basic and diluted (%) _ 24 1.97 1.03
Summary of significant accounting policies . 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S RB C & Co. LLP Grient Abrasives Limited
Chariered Accountants
[CAIl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Mihir Devani Hemul Shah
per Arpit K Patel Whole Time Director Director
Partner DIN : 07238089 DIN : 00058558
Membership No. 34032 Sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2016

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 26, 2016

Hari Swarcop Govyal
G Accounts & Finance
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ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2016

{Amount in ¥ Lacs)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 3, 707.64 1,713.80
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 896.22 1,058.07
Loss on sale of fixed asssls 25.57 4.39
Interest income {122.81) (14.80)
Inierest expense 310.98 24677
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required, written back {79.36) {65.38)
Provigion for doubtful debts 59.09 707
Provision for litigation - 37.68
Unrealised foreign exchange loss {net) 12.58 0.1
Opsrating profit before working capital changes 4,310.11 2,085.43
Movements in working capital :
(Increase; / decrease in loans and advances and other current assets {511.74) 35.25
increase in irade payables, other current Fabilities and provisions 1,885.81 1,096.00
{Increase) in inventories : (441.78) {1,582.01}
{Increase) in trade receivables {4,640.98) {708.50)
Cash generated from operations 1,104.42 1,82017
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) {215.19) (670.89)
Amaunt spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility - {14.96)
Net cash generated from operating activities 886.22 1,134.32
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets _
{including capital work-in-progress and capital advances) {1,602.08) (932.38}
Proceed from sale of fixed assets 28.32 9.37
“Interest received. 118.67 15.39
Deposits made during the year {with maturity more than three months) {40.74) (52.87)
MNet cash used in investing activilies {895.81) {960.49)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term loans® . {231.00) (462.00)
Proceeds of working capital loan {nat) 1,320.96 1,025.33
Proceeds from short ferm borrowings 311.88 2,245.69
Repayment from short term borrowings {568.37) (2.468.80)
Dividends paid (including dividend tax) {363.28) {283.34)
Interast paid (324.20) {244.50)
Net cash used in financing activities 145.77 (187.62}
Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + ) 138.19 {13.79)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 153.11 168.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 288.30 153.11
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{Amount in T Lacs)

For the year ended Foi the year ended
PARTICULARS karch 31, 2818 March 31, 2015

Component of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash in hand ' 8.97 4.27
With banks
- On current accounts - 166.20 29.41
- On Current accounts (Earmarked for unpaid dividend) ™ 116.13 119.43
Cash and cash equivalenis ai the end of the year (Refer Note 18) 285.30 1563.11
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
* Term loans repayment are net of realisations from option contract taken for hedging foreign currency exchange

rate risk against such loans.

* These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unpaid dividend
liabilities.

Motes:

a) The cash flow staiement has been prepared under "Indirect method" as set out in Accounting Standard - 3 on
Cash Flow Statement.

b} Cash outflows have been shown in brackets.

As per our report of even date for and on behall of the Board of Directors of
For SRB C & Co. LLP Crient Abrasives Limiied

Chartered Accountants
{CAl Firm Registration No. 324882E/E300003

Sdr- Sdf-
Sd/- Mihir Devani Hemui Shah
per Arpit K Patel Whole Time Director Direcior
Pariner DIN : 07238089 DIN : 00058558
Mermbership No. 34032

Sd/-

Place: Ahredabad Piace : Mumbai Hari Swaroop Goyal
Date : May 26, 2018 Date : May 26, 2016 GM Accounts & Finance
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ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 231, 2016

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1.

2.1
a.

Corporate information

Crient Abrasives Limited (‘The Company’} is engaged in the production and selling of Alumina Refractories and
Monelithics products, Mining of bauxite ores and generation of power (including windmill facilities). The Company's
manufacturing faciliies are located at Porbandar (Guiarat) along with thermal power generation; bauxite mines
located at various sites in Gujarat and windmill facilities in the state of Hajasthan and Karnataka.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in india (Indian GAAP), The company has prepared these financial staterments to comply in all material
respects with the accounting standards nofified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The financial statemenis have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year, except for the change in accounting policy explained below.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Change in accounting policy

The company has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
from 1 April 2015. The company was previously not identifying components of tangible assets separately for
depreciation purposes; rather, a single ussful life/ depreciation rate was ussd to depreciate each item of tanglb!e
assets.

Due to application of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, the company has changed the manner of
depreciation for its tangible assets. Now, the company identifies and determines cost of each compeneny/ part of
the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated separately
over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The company
has used transitional provisions of Scheduie li to adjust the impact of compenent accounting arising on fs first
application. If a component has zero remaining useful life on the date of component accounting becoming
effective, i.e., 1 April 2015, its carrying amount, after retaining any residual value, is charged to the statement of
profit and loss. The carrying amount of other components, i.e., components whose remaining useful life is not nil
on 1 April 2015, is depreciated over their remaining useful Ilves

Had the company continued to use the earlier policy of depreciating tangible assets, depreciation for the current
period would have been lower by ¥ 47.64 lacs. Profit and vaiue of the tangible assets for the cuirent period would
correspondingly have been higher by ¥ 47.64 lacs {net of tax impact of T38.11 lacs).

Use of estimates _

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these -
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes reguiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Tangible Fixed Asseis

Fixed Assets including capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met,
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed
assets is added to it's book value if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on exisiing fixed asset, including day to day
repairs and maintenance expenditure and cost of replaging parts, are charged to the siaiement of proflt and ioss
for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of fixed asset are capitalized at cost and depreciated over thelr
useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/
part has a cost which is significant o the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materiaily different from
that of the remaining asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition/sale proceeds of fixed assets are measured as the difference between
net disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognisad.
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Depreciation on Tangibls Fixed Asset

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of leass.

Depreciation on fixed asset is caloulated on. a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013, which coincides with management’s
estimate of useful life, on all assets except for certain category of plant & machineries such as Thermal Power
Plant and Windmills, which are depreciated basad on management's estimate of the useful life of 25 years.

The identified components of fixed assets are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining
components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

For the asséts added during the financial year under review, depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis from the
date of commissioning. The residual value, useful life and method of depreciation of fixed asset are reviewed at
each year end and adjusted prospectively, B appropriate.

intangible Asset '

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

As at year end, iniangible assets in the nature of sofiware applications is under development.

impairment

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating uni’'s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverabie amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recaverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their prasent value using a pre-tax
discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. I ne such
transactiong can he identified, an appropriate valuation ymodel is used.

After impairment depreciation is provided cn the reviewed carrying amount of the asset over it's remaining usefut life.
Leases

Where the Company is lessee

Leases whers the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased iem,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Government grants and subsidies ’

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy refates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement
of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. Where the company receives non-monetary
grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given free of
cost, it is recognized at a nominal value. Government granis of the nature of promoters’ contribution are credited
to capital reserve and treated as a part of the shareholders’ funds

Inventtories -

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, stores and spares Lower of cost and net realizable value. Materials and other items
held for use in the production of inveniories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on
weighied average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods - | Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise
duty, wherever applicable. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis.

Bauxite Ores . 1| Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes excavation cost
andg other direct costs 1o bring the inventory 1o present location and
condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Waste Net realizable value

Net realizabie value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and

the revenue can be rejflably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue

is recoghized.

(i} Sale of goods ‘
Revenue from sale of gocds / bauxite ore is recoghized when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods / bauxite ore have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the good /
bauxite ore. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government
and, therefore, these are not economic bensfits ﬂﬁwing to the Comparny. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue. Excise duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the amount that is mchded in the revenue {(gross)
and not the entire amount of liability arising during the year.

(i} Power generation income

Revenue from sale of power is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the provisions of the
agreements with the respective state governments/organization.

(iif) Interest 7
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion ‘basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable. Interest income is included under the head ‘other income’ in the statement of profit & loss.

Borrowing Cost

- Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
" borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its iniended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they oceur.

Foreign currency fransactions
{i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions. ara recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the- forelgn currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the forgign currency at the date of the
transaction.

(i) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reiranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreagn currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. .

(i} Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statemenis, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they
arise.

{iv) Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an asset / liability

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized and recognised
as expense or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized
in the statermnent of profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising
on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for that
year. .

Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivative contracts such as Option Contracts to hedge foreign currency borrowings. The
outstanding derivative contracts at the balance sheet date are valued by marking them to market and losses, if
any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and L.oss.

The option premium payable is recognised on an accrual basis during the tenure of the borrowing.

Retirement and other employee beneiits

(i} Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is & defined contribution scheme. The company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an emplovee renders the related service, If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance shaet date exceeds the
coniribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution aiready paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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‘ (iiy Gratuity kability is defined banefit obiigation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit (PUC) method made at the end of each financial year. The Company has taken an
: insurance policy under the Group Gratuity Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) to
cover the gratuity Hability of the employees and amount paid/payabie in respect of the present value of
liability for the past services is charged to staternent of profit and loss account every year, The difference,
it any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of the employee at the year end and the balances
of the fund of LIC is provided for as liability in the books. Actuarial Gain/losses are immediately taken to
the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

(liy Accumuilated Ieave, which is expected to be utilized within the next tweive months, is treated as short
terrn employee benefits. The Company measures the expsected cost of such absence as the additional
amount that is expected to pay as a result of the unused estimate that has accumulaied at the reporting
date. The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as
long term compensaied absences which are provided for based on actuarial valuation as at the end of
the period. The actuariai valuation is done as per projecied unit credit method.

(iv) The company treals accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The
company presents the leave as a current fiability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
uncenditional right to defer its seitlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the setilement for a period beyond 12 months, the
same is presented as non-current liabiiity.

{v) Actuarial gains/iosses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
o. Income taxes '

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the income tax authorities in agcordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
india. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between
taxabie income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. If the Company has unabsorbed
. depreciation or carry forward tax losses, entive deferred fax asseis are recognized only if there is virtual
ceriainty supported by convincing evidence that such deferred tax asseis can be realized against future
taxable profits. :

The Company is eniitied to a tax holiday under the income-tax Act, 1961 in respect of certain income, no
deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax
holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is
recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate. For recognition of deferred taxes, the timing
differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company
writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
deferrad tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the exient that it becomes reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid during a year is charged 1o the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the exient there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e. for the period for which MAT credit is
allowed tc be carried forward. In the vear in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternaiive Tax
under the income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss
and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does nol have convincing evidence that it
will pay normal tax during the specified period.
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Segment Reporting Policies
ldentification of segments :

Business Segment :
The Company’s operaling businesses are organized and managed separaiely according to the nature of -
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which
major operating divisions of the Company operate.

intersegment Transfers :

The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to
third parties at current market prices.

Allocation of common cosis :

Common allocable costs are aliocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment
" to the total common costs.

Segment Policies : ‘

The Company prepares segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole,

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, nsat profit or loss for the year afiributable to equity
sharehoiders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is.
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash eguivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less for the purposes of cash-flow statement

Contingent liability _

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence wiil be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settie the obligation. The-Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

(Amount in T Lacs)

As At As At
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
3. Share Capital
Authorised shares .
12,00,00,000 (Previous year 12,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each 1,200.00 1,200.00
4,00,000 (Previous year 4,00,000) - 6% Redeemable cumulative )
preference shares of ¥ 100/- each 400.00 400.00
1,600.00 1,600.00
Issued and subscribed shares .
11,96,59,200 (Previous year 11,96,59,200) Equity Shares of
T 1/- each 1,196.59 1,196.59
Péid,up shares
11,96,39,200 {Previous year 11,96,3%,200) Equity Shares of T 1/- each 1,186.39 1,196.39
Add: Shares forfeited (amount paid up) 0.13 0.13
Totat issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 1,196.562 1,196.52
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting
period
At the beginning of the year {(excluding forfeited shares)
11,96,39,200 (Previous year 11,96,39,200) Equity Shares of T 1/- each 1,196.39 : 1,196.39
Ouistanding at the year end (excluding forfeited shares) :
11,96,39,200 (Previous year 11,96,39,200) Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each 1,196.39 1,196.39
h. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1.00 per share. The holder of each
fully paid equity share is entitled to one vote. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.
For the current financial year ended March 31, 2016, the amount of per equity share dividend recognized as
distributions to equity shareholders is ¥ 0.25 (Previous year T 0.25)
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at As At

Name March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
No. Lacs %' holding | No. Lacs %' holding

Equity Shares of T 1.00 each fully paid up

Bombay Minerals Limited ’ 467.83 39.10% 215.35 18.00%

Cura Global holdings Limited 283.89 23.73% - -

Mr. S G Rajgarhia - - 235.80 19.71%

As per recards of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownerships of shares.
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{Amount in ¥ L.acs)

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

4, Reserves and Surplus

General Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 8,579.44 8,206.57
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the staterment '
of profit and loss 400.00 400.00
Less: Depreciation charge due to useful life estimate change - (27.13)
Closing Balance , (A) 8,979.44 8,579.44
Surplus Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the last financial statements 5,756.76 5,300.79
Profit for the year 2,361.15 1,230.92
8,117.92 6,531.71
Less: Appropriations ‘
Proposed dividend on equity shares T 0.25 (previous year ¥ 0.25) 299.10 299.10
Tax on dividend 60.89 60.89
Transferred to general reserve 400.00 400.00
Amount Spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility - 14.96
Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss (B) 7,357.93 5,756.76
Total reserves and surplus (A+B) 16,337.37 14,336.20
5. Long-term borrowings
Term loans (secured)
Foreign currency loan from banks* - 312.95
. - 312,95
Less: Current maturity of term loans disclosed under other
current liabilities {Refer note 9) - 312.95
- 312.95
Total - -
The above amount includes:
Secured Borrowings ) - 312.95
Amount disclosed under the head "other current liabilities" (Refer note 9) - (312.95)

*Foreign currency loan of Nil (Previous year ¥ 312.95 lacs) carried interest @ LIBOR plus 3% p.a., was repayable in
16 quarterty instaiments of USD 250,000 each from the date of Gctober 2011. It was exclusively secured on all the
wind mills assels of the company. The Company has outstanding option contract against the borrowings & receivables
under the option is classified in Note 13.

6.

Deferred tax liability (net)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
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depreciation charged for the financial reporting . 1,292.09 991.81

Gross deferred tax liability (A) 1,292.09 991.81

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Pravision for deubtful debts, advances and recoverables 29.52 8.91

Employee benefit expenditure debited to the statement of profit

and loss but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis 66.06 48.91

Provision for litigation - 11.79

Gross deferred tax asset (B) 95.58 69.61

Total {A-B) 1,196.51 922.20
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(Amount in % Lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
7. Other long-term liabilities
Interest free deposits
From staff * 16.09 22.67
Total 16.09 22.67
* Interest free deposits as security from staff against vehicles provided by the Company.
8. Shor-terms borrowings
Working capital loan from bank (secured)” 3,621.92 2,300.96
Other borrowings
Loan from body corporate (unsecured) repayable on demand, interest 10% p.a. : - 56.71
Loan from directors (unsecured) repayable on demand, interest 10% p.a, - 200.00
Total 3,621.92 2,557.67

*Working capital loans from bank is secured by first charge on all current and fixed assets of company, both present & future, including
stocks of raw materials, stores, spares, stocks in process & finished goods etfc. lying in company premises, godowns, elsewhere
including those in transit and all present and future book-debts / receivables of the company. These facilities are further secured by
equitable mortgage of the following properties:- (i} Industrial Plot in GIDC Industrial Area, Porbandar, Gujarat, Survey No. 1 measuring
200022 square meters; (il} Immovable property on plot at Choapti Road opposite Lal Bangla, Survey Ward No. 3, Survey No. 3480 and
3481 measuring square yards 712-3-0, Porbandar, Gujarat and (jii) immevable property Vageswari Plot in Porbandar Gity bearing City
Survey No. 3, Survey No. 1662 measuring square yards 648-8-0. The working capital loan is repayable on demand and carries interest
@ 10.55% - 11.10% p.a.

9. Other current liabilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note 29) - -

- Total outstanding dues of creditor other than Micro and Small Enterprises 3,898.84 2,164.86
Other liabilities :
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 5) - 312.95
Capital goods creditors _ 1.46 40.13
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings ' - 13.22
Advance from customers - 8.54 18.79
Unpaid dividend - 116.13 119.43
Others
Interest free deposits from staff (Refer Note 7) 3.95 7.09
Statutory dues : 133.13 90.70
Other payable 247.32 273.78
Total ' : 510.53 876.09

10. Provisions
Non-current

Provision for litigation {Refer Note 38) 37.68 37.68
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 30) 3.47 -
Provision for leave benefits 85.68 99.27
Provision for cost of mines restoration {Refer Note 38} 15.00 -
Total 141.83 136.95
Current

Provision for leave benefits 13.49 30.14
Proposed equity dividend 299.10 29910
Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend . 60.88 60.88
Provision for tax 136.25 -
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 30) : 88.25 -
Total 597.97 390.12
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{Amount in ¥ Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

12

Loans and advances (unsecured, considered good
unless stated otherwise)

Non Current

Capital Advances 183.06 50.65
Other loans and advances
Prepaid expenses 53.19 54.58
Security deposits 12.69 8.18
Income-Taxes (net of provision for tax) 304.76 1,025.50
Total 553.70 1,138.91
Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 703.21 217.62
Unsecured, considered doubtful 11.07 11.07
714.28 228.69
Provision for doubtful advances (11.07) {11.07)
(A) 703.21 217.62
Other loans and advances
Gratuity fund balance (net of provisicn) (Refer Note 30} - 54.37
Advance to gratuity fund with LIC - 24.47
Security deposit 20.00 -
Prepaid expenses 65.46 43.44
Balance with statutory/government authorities 268.53 302.57
(B) 353.99 424.85
Total ' (A+B) 1,057.20 642.47
13. Other assets
Non current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Non current bank batances (refer note 16) 13117 112.43
Subsidy receivable on power generated from windmill 36.61 21.95
Electricity duty Receivable 27.83 -
Interest accrued on non current bank balances and security deposits 2.22 0.48
Total 197.83 134.86
Current )
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Export benefits recoverable (considered doubiful) 7.36 7.36
Less: Provision for doubtful export benefits recoverable (7.36) (7.36)
Interest accrued on current bank balances and security deposits 3.45 1.25
Custom duty recoverable 50.58 -
Accrued revenue 41.15 40.33
Mark to market value of option contract (Refer Note 5) - 81.95
Total 95.18 123.53
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{Amount in ¥ Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

14. Inventories (Valued at lower of cost
and net realizable value)

Raw materials (including goods in transit ¥ 11.56 lacs,

Previous year ¥ 53.01 lacs) (Refer note 36 & 19) 1,964.84 1,979.05
- Work-in-progress {Refer note 20) 1,724.98 1,254.28
Finished goods (Refer note 20) 1,363.64 1,920.54
Bauxite Ore (Refer note 20) 497.46 265.60
Waste (Reifer note 20) 388.05 179.01
Stores and spares {including goods in transit T Nil,
Previous year T 16.53 lacs) 1,175.88 1,074.59
Total 7,114.85 6,673.07
15. Trade receivables (Unsecured unless
otherwise stated)
Outstanding for a périod exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment :
Unsecured, considered good 426.45 80.14
Considered doubtful 66.86 7.77
493.3% 97.91
Provision for doubtful receivables 66.86 7.77
{A) 426.45 90.14
Others receivables :
Considered good 7.,659,01 3,426.00
(B) 7,659.01 3,426.00
Total A+B 8,085.46 3,516.14
16. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- Current accounts 166.20 29.41
- On Current accounts (Earmarked for unpaid dividend) 116.13 119.43
Cash in hand 6.97 4.27
289.30 153.11
Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity for maore than 3 months but
less than 12 months 20.00 -
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 6.00 -
Margin money deposiis® 12717 112.43
153.17 112.43
Amount disclosed under non-current asset (Refer note 13) {i31.17) {112.43)
22.00 -
Total 311.30 153.11

*Margin money deposits are given as lien against the bank guarantees given io government authorities and

customers, :
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{Amount in ¥ Lacs)
For the year ended For the year ended

) March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
17. Revenue from Operations
Sales of products
Finished goods (Refer Note below) 22,688.20 19,163.91
Sale of bauxite ore 7,248,224 69.27
Sale of power 666.53 626.96
Dther operating revenue
Sale of waste _ 489.57 511.34
Subsidy on power generated from windmill 14.66 16.27
Othets 22.95 39.49
Revenue from operations (gross) 31,131.15 - 20,427.24
Less: Excise duty” 2,501.38 2,136.48
Revenue from operations (net) 28,629.77 18,290.76

* Excise duty on sales amounting to T 2,501.38 lacs (Previous year ¥ 2,136.48 lacs) has been reduced from sales
in statement of profit and loss and excise duty on increase in stock amounting to. ¥ 13.12 lacs {Previous year
increase of ¥ 63.68 lacs) has been considered as expense in note 22 of financial statements.

Details of finished goods sold

Grains ' 16,474.25 14,242.55
Monolithics 2,736.54 2,291.74
Calcined products 3,477,.41 2,629.62

Total ] 22,688.20 19,163.91

18. Other Income
Interest income

- On bank deposits 9.86 6.00

- On others : 112.75 8.90
Liabilities no longer required written back 79.36 65.36
Exchange difference (net) : : - 3.86
Miscellaneous income ' 3.67 6.15
Total 205.64 90.27

19, Cost of materials consumed

inventory at the beginning of the year 1,879.05 1,336.30
Purchases® (Refer note 33) : 6,754.51 6,302.52
8,733.56 7.638.82

Less: Inventory at the end of the year {1,964.84) {1,979.05)
Cost of materials consumed 6,768.72 5,659.77

*inciudes royalty paid on bauxite ores excavated for captive consumption amounting to ¥ 411 lacs
(previous year T 106 lacs)

Details of materials
Materials consumed

Bauxite 3,507.33 2,201.57
Alumina 2,770.43 3,057.36
Zirconia 212.79 232.62
Others 278.17 168.22
Total 6,768.72 5659.77
Details of ciosing inventory of materials

Bauxite 1,808.75 1,589.96
Alumina : 74.83 ' 282.96
Zirconia 15.86 38.15
Others 64.40 67.98
Total 1,964.84 1,979.05
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{Amount in ¥ Lacs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
20. Increase in inventories
Inventories at the end of the year .
Finished goods 1,363.64 1,920.54
Bauxite Ore 497.46 . 265.60
Work-in-progress 1,724,98 1,254.28
Waste 388.05 179.01
3,974.13 3,619.43
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods : 1,920.54 1,607.82
Bauxite Ore ' - ‘ 265.60 265.60
Work-in-progress 1,254.28 794.18
Waste _ ‘ 179.01 58.28
3,619.43 2,725.88
Increase in inventories (354.70) {893.55)
Details of Inventories
Finished Goods
Grains ) 1,030.51 1,395.64
Monolithics ' ' 48.17 192.60
Calcined products : 284.97 332.30
' 1,363.64 1,920.54
Bauxite Ore ) 497.46 265.60
Work in progress ‘
Grains 1,385.53 ‘ 985.57
Maonolithics 132.09 . 106.82
Calcined products 207.36 161.89
1,724.98 1,254.28
Waste
Grains 339.09 159.90
Calcined products - 48,98 19.11
388.05 179.01
21. Employee Benefits Expense*
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,842.93 1,643.75
Contribution to provident and other funds 74.94 153.17
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 30) 167.93 106.18
Staff welfare expenses 137.40 94.38
| 2,223.20 1,897.46

*includes costs relating to sub-contractor's workers, who are entitled to all retirement benefits as per
Company’s policy
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(Amount in ¥ Lacs)
Eor the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
22. Other Expenses
Power and fue! 4.872.41 5,220.71
Consumption of stores and spare 2,036.27 2,009.57
Royaity and tax levies on export 2,087.27 -
Mining cost to contractors 637.22 -
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery : 350.82 349.35
Buildings 65.81 5B8.64
Others 66.78 69.14
Rent (Refer note 31) 368.71 50.37
Packing expenses 276.84 24934
Increase in excise duty on closing stock (13.12) 63.68
Freight and forwarding expenses 3,367.37 121.03
Commission on sales 21.95 26.19
Research & development 300.00 -
Rates and taxes 60.74 11.50
l.egal and professional fees 106.91 90.76
Conaticn expenses _ 70.40 324
Insurance 55.83 41.04
Provision for doubtful advances and other advances 59.09 737
Exchange difierence (net) 39.67 -
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer note 41) 31.66 -
Travelling and conveyance 31.23 44.71
Loss on sale of fixed assets 25.57 4.3%
Auditor's remuneration {Refer details below) 21.52 16.99
Communication expenses 17.39 15.29
Printing and stationery 12,99 32.84
Business Promotion 5.08 1.84
Provision for litigations - 37.68
Miscellaneous expenses (includes payment of penalty of T Nil,
previous year: ¥ 17.50 lacs) 124,93 144.60
Total 14,779.41 8,668.67
Payment to auditor
As auditor: '
- Audit fee 13.35 11.50
- Limited review 5.40 4.50
- Certification fees 1.25 -
Out of pocket expenses 1.52 : 0.99
Total 21.52 16.99
23. Finance Costs
interest
- to Banks 277.02 220.45
- to Others 33.96 26.32
Bank charges 29.47 28.94
Total 340.45 275.71
24. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic
and diluted EPS computations:
Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS 2,361.16 1,230.92
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 1,195.38 1,196.39
and diluted EPS (no. in lacs)
Basic and dituted earning per share () 1.7 1.03

Annual Report 63 2015 - 2016




ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

25. Segment Information

Business Segments :

The Company operates in primarily two segments i.e. {a) Alumina Refractories & Monolithics products & bauxite
ores and (b) power generation. ’

A dascription of the types of products and services provided by each reporiable segment is as follows:

Alumina Refractories & Monolithics products manufactures calcined bauxite, fused aluminium oxide abrasive grains
and low cement castables which are mainly consumed in steel plants. Plant grade bauxiie ores are captively
consumed at the plant and Non plant grade bauxite ores are sold in the market.

Power generation - The Company has a thermal power plant, furnace oil based power plant and windmills. Power
generated from thermal power plant and furnace oil based power plant is captively consumed at the plant and
power generated from windmills is scld to the respective state power distribution companies.

Geographical Segments:
The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The Company
operates primarily in India and has some presence in international markets as well through exports. Its business .

is accordingly aligned geographically, catering to two markets i.e. India and Outside [ndia.

{Amount in ¥ lacs)

Primary Segments Reporting (by Business Segments)
Segment Revenues, Results and Other Information
‘ Alumina Refractories Power
Particuiars & Monolithics producis Generaticn Total
. & bauwxite ores

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
REVENUE
External Sales (net of Excise duty) 27,948.58 17,647.53 681.19 643.23 28,620.77 18,290.76
inter Segment Sales - - 4,856.97 4,103.06 4,856.97 4,103.086

27,948.58 17,647.53 5,538.16 4,746.29 33,486.74 22,393.82
Less: Inter Segment Sale - - 4,856.97 4,103.06 4,856.97 4,103.06
Net Sales/Income from Operations |  27,948.58 17,647.53 681.19 643.23 28,629.77 18,220.76
SEGMENT RESULTS 2,385.75 1,730.72 1,817.08 620.33 4,302.83 2,351.05
Less: Unallocable expenditure/
(income) net off unallocable income/ 284.21 390.38
expenditure
Operating Profit 4,018.62 1,960.67
Less: Interest Expenses 310.98 248,77
Profit before tax 3,707.64 1,713.90
Less: Current tax 1,346.48 482 .98
Net Profit after tax 2,361.16 1,230.92
Segment Assets and Liabilities

Alumina Refractories Power

Particulars & Monolithics products Generation Totai
& bauxite ores

3i-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
Segment Assels 18,168.64 13,949.96 6,881.37 7,194.07 25,050.01 21,144.03
Unallocated Corporate Assets 2.467.57 1,458.29
Total Assets 18,168.64 13,949.96 6,881.37 7,194.07 27,517.58 22 603.321
Segment Liabilities 4,359.49 2,243.30 183.49 488.35 - 4,542.98 2,731.65
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities _ 54401 4,338.95
Total Liabilities 4,359.49 2,243.30 183.49 488.35 9,983.69 7,070.60
Capital Expenditure 697.06 948.76 133.42 9.64 830.48 958.40
Depreciation 532.10 394,32 352.56 647.18 884.56 1,041.51
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Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments)

Secondary segment reporting is based on the geographical location of customers. The geographical segments have been identified
based on revenues within India (sales to customers within India) and revenues outside India.

The following is the distribution of the Company’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were

produced:
(Amount in ¥ lacs)
Particulars india Outside India Total
31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 3i-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
Revenue
Sale of goods to external customer 20,617.16 18,267.76 8,012.61 23.00 28,629.77 18,290.76
{Net of excise duty)
Segment Assets : ’
Trade Receivables 8,445.42 3,516.14 1,640.04 - 8,085.46 3,516.14

Note: The company has other common assets for producing goods for sales within India and Sales outside India. Hence, separate
disclosure for the other assets is not furnished

26. Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and their relationship
‘Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a. Key management personnel

Name Relationship
1 Mr. S. G. Rajgarhia Managing Director (tifl July 15, 2015)
2 Mr. P. P. Khanna - Executive Director {till July 15, 2015}
3. Mr. R. K. Khanna Whole Time Director (till July 15, 2015)
4 Mrs. Anisha Mittal Director (iill June 09, 2015)
5 Mr. Mihir Devani Whole Time Director (w.e.f August 06, 2015)

b. Relatives of Key management personnel (tilt July 15, 2015)

Name Relationship
1. Mrs. Usha Rajgarhia ' Wwife of Managing Director
2. Ms. Bhawna Rajgarhia Daughter of Managing Director

¢. The Enterprises controlled, owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel or their
relatives {upto July 15, 2015)

1 Pyramid Abrasives Private Limited

2 Rovo Marketing Private Limited

3. Madhushree Properties Private Limited
4 Qrient Coated Private Limited

d. Enterprises having significant influence over the company and entities owned / controlied by such
enterprises (w.e.f July 15, 2015)

1. Bombay Minerals Lid.

2 Ashapura Minechem Ltd.
3 Ashapura Perfoclay Lid.

4, Ashapura International Ltd.
5 Ashapura Foundation
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{b) Transaction with related parties during the year during the year ended March 21, 2016

{(Amount in T Lacs)

Enterprises having
significant

Key management

Enterprises owned
or significantly

Particulars influence over the personnel and influenced by key Totai
company & entities their reiatives management
owned / controiled personnel or
by such enterprises their relatives
March 31, | March 31,| March 31,| March 31,| March 31.| March 31,| March 31,] March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015 20186 2015 2018 2015
Sales
Pyramid Abrasives Private Limited - - - 51.13 192.74 51.13 192.74
Ashapura Minechem Ltd. 418.05 - - - - - 418.05 -
Ashapura Perfoclay itd. 6.45 - - B - - 6.45 -
Bombay Minerals Lid. 311.56 - “ - - 311.56 -
Orient Coated Private Limited - - - - - 35.87 - 35.87
Total 736.06 - - - 51.13 228.61 787.19 228.61
Purchases
Ashapura International Ltd. 6.16 - - - 6.18 -
Ashapura Minechem Ltd. 29.08 - - - - 29.08 -
Bombay Minerals Ltd. 1,120.62 - - - -1 1,120.92 -
Total 1,156.16 - - - - -| 1,156.16 -
Rent Paid
Bhavna Rajgarhia - - 5.14 17.33 - - 5.14 17.33
Usha Rajgarhia - - 2.30 6.91 - - 2.30 6.91
Bombay Minerals Ltd. 2.00 - - - - - 2.00 -
Madhushree Properties Pvt. Limited - - - - 0.53 1.80 0.53 1.80
Total 2,00 - 7.44 24.24 0.53 1.80 9.97 26.04
Interest Paid
Rovo Marketing Private Limited - - - - 3.77 6.06 3.77 6.06
P.P.Khanna - - .33 20.00 - - 0.33 20.00
S.G.Rajgarhia - - .24 - - - 0.24
Tota - - 0.33 20.24 3.77 6.06 4,10 26.30
Manageriai Remuneration *
S.G.Rajgarhia - - 13.31 29.76 - 13.31 29.76
P.P.Khanna - - 47.54 88.79 - - 47.54 88.79
R.K. Khanna - - 42.13 52.75 - - A42.13 52.75
Mihir Bevani - - 20.11 - - - 20.11 -
Total - - 123.09 171.30 - - 123.09 171.30
Salaries, Wages And Bonus *
Usha Rajgarhia - - 1.88 4.1 - - 1.89 411
Anisha Mittal - - - 16.72 - - - 16.72
Total - - 1.89 20.83 - - 1.89 20.83
Reimbursement of expenses
(received)
Ashapura Minechem Lid. 7.73 - - - - - 7.73 -
Rovo Marketing Private Limited - - - - 30.85 30.85
Total 7.73 - - - - 30.85 7.73 30.85
Capital Purchases
Bombay Minerals Ltd. 411.82 - - - - 411.82 -
Total 411.82 - - - - - 411.82 -
Donation paid .
Ashapura Foundation 20.00 - - - - - 20.00 -
Total 20.00 - - - - - 20.00 ~
Purchase of services
Bombay Minerals Ltd. 120.89 - - - - 190.89 -
Ashapura Minechem Lid. 399,29 - - - - 396.29 -
Total 590.18 - - - - - 590.18 -
Other income
Bombay Minerais Lid. 0.25 - - - - - 0.25 -
Tofai 0.25 - - - - - 0.25 -
Unsecured Loan Taken
Rovo Marketing Private Limited - - - - 307.93| 2,219.40 307.931 2,219.40
Total - - - - 307.93! 2,219.40 307.93] 2,219.40
Unsecured Loan Repaid
(including interest)
Rovo Marketing Private Limited - - - - 368.04 | 2,363.31 368.04 2,363.3t1
P.P.Khanna - - 200.33 23.66 - - 200.33 23.66
S.G.Rajgarhia - - 50.98 - - - 50.98
Total - - 200.33 74.64 368.04| 2,363.31 568.37; 2,437.95
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{¢} Closing balance of related parties as at March 31, 2016

{Amount in ¥ Lacs)

Enterprises having Enterprises owned
significant Key management or significantly
Particuiars influence over the persopnel and influenced by key Total

company & entities their relatives management

owned / controlled personnel or

by such enterprises their reiatives

March 31, |March 31,| March 31,| March 31, March 31, | March 31, March 31,| March 31,

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Trade receivablas:
Pyramid Abrasives Private Limiied - - - - - 54.69 - 54.69
Ashapura Perfoclay Lid. 3.38 - - - - 3.38 -
Orient Coated Private Limited - | - - - - 19.64 - 19.94
Total 3.38 - - - - 74.63 1.338 74.63
Trade Payables: .
5.G.Rajgarhia - - - 4.38 - - - 4.38
Usha Rajgarhia - - - 0.78 - - - 0.78
Anisha Mittal - - - 2.38 - - - 2.38
R.K. Khanna - - - 7.01 L. - - - 7.0
Mihir Devani - - 1.79 - - - 1.7¢ -
Ashapura nternational Ltd. 0.22 - - - - - 0.22 -
Ashapura Minechem Lid. 242,82 - - - - - 242.82 -
Bombay Minerals Lid. 543.88 - - - - - 543.88 ‘ -
P.P.Khanna : - - - 9.13 - - - 9.13
Total 786.82 - 1.79 23.68 - - 788.71 23.68
Short term borrowings:
{including interest payablie)
Rovo Marketing Private Limited - - - - 56.71 - 56.71
P.P. Khanna - - - 200.00 - - “ 200.00
S.G.Rajgarhia - -l - - - - - - -
Total - - - 200.00 - 56.71 - 256.71
Guaraniee given ‘
5.G3.Rajgarhia - -l . 3,400.00 - - -| 3,400.00
Total - -|  3,400.00 - - -1 3,400.00

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

27. Contingent tiabilities

i) Power claim matters decided in favour of the Company
by the District Court (Civil Court, Senior Division, Porbandar)
but Paschim Gujarat Vidyut Company Limited has gone
into further appeal before Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat,.
(Refer Note A below)}

i} Sales tax and interest demand raised by Rajkot
Sales tax authorities for non-submission of Declarations
Forms for the year 2011-12.

i) Demand raised by the income Tax Authorities, being
disputed by the Company (Refer Note B beiow)

vi) Demand from Joint Commissioner Customs for payment of
differential customs duty

v) Cases pending with Labour Courts {Refer Note C below)

Note A

In view of decision already in favour of Company by the District Court (Civil Coutt, Senior Divisicn, Porbandar)

and based on discussion with the solicitors, the management believes that the Company has a strong chance

and hence no provision there against is considered necessary.

Note

Demands raised by Income tax authorities substantially pertains to dispute on determination of inter segment

price for claiming tax holiday benefits which are disallowed / disputed by such authorities. The management

believes that its position is likely to be upheld in the appellate process.

Note ©

in view of large number of cases, it is not practicable to disclose individual details of all the cases. On the basis

of current status of individual case and as per legal advice obtained by the Company, wherever applicable, the

Company is of view that no provision is required in respect of these cases.

338.02 338.02
22.01 -
417.53 255.45

18.42 -
{(Amount unascertainable)
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28.

29,

30.

Annual Report

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary has resigned with effect from 13th November, 2015
and 30th April 2016 respectively, and as on date, the management is in process of appointing a CFG and Company
Secretary. Hence, the financial statements are not signed by such authorities as required under section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013

Detalls of duss to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Based on information available with the Company, there are no suppliers who are registered as micro, smali or
medium enterprise under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (Act) till 31st March,
2016. Accordingly, no disclosures are required to be made under said Act.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity is computed as 15 days salary, for every compigled
year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The
benefit vests on the employees after completion of 5 years of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance
company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy. .

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and
loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recoanized in the employes coét

(Amount in ¥ lacs)

Parti Gratuity
articulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Current service cost 40.75 43.32
Interest cost on benefit obligation 35.02 32.88
Expected return on plan assets (39.26) (38.31)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 131.42 68.27
Net benefit expense 167.93 106.16
Balance sheet
Details of provision for Gratuity
. Gratuity
Particulars March 21, 2016 March 31, 2015
Present value of defined benefit obligation {398.79) 448.96
Fair value of plan assets 307.07 503.33
Plan asset / (liability) (91.72) 54.37

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Opening defined henefit obligation 448.98 386.80
Current service cost 40.75 43.32
Interest cost 35.02 32.88
Benefits paid (250.43) " (84.49)
Actuarial {gains)/losses on abligation 124.50 70.45
Closing defined henefit obligation 398.80 448.96
Changes in the fair value of plan assets for gratuity are as follows:
. ' Gratuity
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 503.33 425.62
Expected return on plan assets 39.28 38.31
Contributions by employer 21.83 121.71
Benefits paid (250.43) (84.49)
Actuarial (gains)/losses {6.92) 218
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 307.07 503.33

Note:

The present value of the plan assets represents the balance available with LIC as at the end of the period. The
total value of plan assets amounting to I 307.07 tacs (previous year ¥ 503.33 lacs) is as certified by the LIC.
The Company expects to contribute ¥ 95 lacs to gratuity in the next year (previous year ¥ 48.36 lacs).
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{Amount in T lacs)
The major categories of plan asseis as a percentage of the fair value of {otai plan assets Is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 20618 March 31, 2015
Investments with insurer - Insurance policy with
Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%

The overali expected rate of return on asset is determined based on market price prevailing on that date, applicable
to the period over which the obligation has to be setiled.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars ratuty :

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015
Discount rate 8.08% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on assets 8.08% 9.00%
increase in compensation cost 8.00% 8.00%
Empioyee turnover: Age group )
upto 30 years 2% 3%
31-44 years : 2% 2%
Above 44 years ) 2% 1%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounis for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Particulars March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 398.80 448.96 386.80 401.97 342.99
Plan assets 307.07 503.33 465.62 415.17 293.09
Surplus / (Deficit) (91.72) 54.37 78.82 13.20 {49.90)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilifies
(loss)/gain 136.56 {28.59) 21.81 {41.18) (0.14)
Experience adjustments on plan assets
{loss)/gain (6.92) 11.76 (10.82} 2.33 -
Contribution to Defined Contribution plans:
' Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Provident Fund 112.93 107.33

31. The Company has taken various residential, office and warehouse premises and some plant and
machinery under operating lease agreements. These are cancellable and are renewable by mutual
consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease payment recognized in the statement of profit and loss for
the year is ¥ 36.71 lacs (Previous year ¥ 50.37 lacs).

32. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure information:

a) Details of derivative contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date
The Company had entered into Option contract over the borrowing term for hedging foreign currency
exchange rate risk against Foreign Currency term loan. The receivabie on derivative setilement as per the
option contract and the Loan Liability in the Financial Statements at the end of previous year were shown

separately.

Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 Purpose

Cross Currency uspb Nif 500,000 | To hedge the interest rate and currency

Coupon only swap : risk by switching its floating USD

with call interest rate liability with a fixed INR
interest rate liability for a specific period
of time and required notional amounts.

Interest accrued but uso il 5,824 | This amount represent interest accrued

not due but not due on above foreign currency
loans.

Annual Report 69 2015 - 2016




ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

b) Details of Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure at the Balance Sheet Date:

{Amount in ¥ lacs)

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Particulars Currency Foreign Rate Amount Foreign Rate Amount
currency (% lacs} | currency (T lacs)
Trade receivables usp 2,472,438 66.34 1640.04 - - -
Payable for
Capital Goods Usb - - - 24,454 62.59 15.31

33. Below is the breakup of expenses refating to exiraction of Bauxite ores at Company’s own mines, which are

captively consumed in manufacturing of alumina refractories:

Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Personnel Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 38.18 62.09
Contribution to Provident and other funds 2.94 6.14
Manpower expenses 1,981.56 1755.67
Operating and Other Expenses :
Consumption of Stores and Spares 0.32 4.68
Rates & Taxes 12.08 10.96
Insurance 0.82 0.42
Legal and Professional Fees 18.83 45.69
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 2.10 5.21
Repairs and Maintenance :
- Plant & Machinery {excluding Stores and Spares Consumed) 0.38 2.15
- Qthers 0.35 0.76
Travelling & Conveyance 7.92 11.75
Communication cost 2.35 512
Miscellaneous Expenses 18.79 11.82

Total 2,086.79 1,923.46

34.
34.1

34.2

Supplementary Statutory Information

Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

{Amount in ¥ lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

F.O.B. Value of Exports

8,012.61

23.00

Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Travelling Nil 5.43
Interest 8.20 38.85
Total 8.20 44.28

Value of imports calculated on CiF basis {on accrual basis)

Particulars

For the vear ended

March 31, 2016

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

Raw Materials - 16.50
Stores and Spares 283.72 532.42
Capital goods 5.69 172.09
Total 289.41 721.01
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{Amount In ¥ lacs)
35. imported and indigenous raw material consumption and siores and spares consumed

Particulars % of total consumption Amount (in  lacs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, | March 31, - March 31, | March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Raw Materials consumption
Indigenous” ' $9.94 99.84 6,764.47 | 5,650.65
Imported G.06 0.16 _ 4.25 9.12
_ Total - 100.00 100.00 6,768.72 | 5,659.77
Stores and Spares consumed
Indigenous 80.83 71.58 1,645.97 1,438.42
Imported 19.17 28.42 390.30 571.55
- Total 100.00 100.00 2,036.27 | 2,009.57

* Includes direct expenses as stated in Note 34

36.

The management believes that the net realizable value of stocks of non plant grade bauxite ore, at various
mines located in Bhuj district (Gujarat) weighing 59,090 tonnes, is higher than its cost incurred. The
management has filed an application for approval to sale such stock with the state government authorities

and it is confident that the required approvals will be obtained shortly and accordingly the stock of ¥ 258.20
lacs {previous year T 25920 lacs) have been valued at cost. .

37. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital
advance and capital work in progress) T 519.77 (Previous Year : T Nil).

38. Provisions

The movement in the provision during the year is as under:

{figures in parenthesis represents previous year numbers)

March 31, Provision Utilised Reversal March 31,
2015 during during during 2016
the year the vear the year
Provision for litigation 37.68 - - - 37.68
. {-) (37.68) (-) (-} (37.68)
Provision for mines restoration - 15.00 - - 15.00
(-} (-} {-) (-} (-)

Note:

a. The Company has received demand from the Joint Commissioner, Customs for payment of differential custom
duty on account of mis-classification on import of coal in the earlier year 2014-15, whereby the Company
has availed the benefit of exemption notification and paid custom duty at a lower rate. The Company has
gone for further appeal to the Commissioner of Customs {Appeals). The Company on a conservative basis
has made provision for the entire amount of ¥ 37.68 lacs.

b. The Company has made provision towards mines closure obligations based on estimated outflow of resources

based on past experience.

39. Change in accounting estimates

The company has revised estimated useful life of windmill and thermal power plant assets based on technical
evaluation made in the year. Had the company continued to use old useful life, depreciation for the current period
would have been higher by ¥ 302 Jacs. Profit and underlying fixed assets for the current period would
correspondingly have been lower by T 302 iacs (profit net of tax impact of ¥ 241.60 lacs). '
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40. The Company is liable to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on income for financial year 2015-16 and accordingly
the Company has made provision of ¥ 803 lacs for current year. The company has not recognised MAT credit in
the books of ¥ 1569 lacs as there is no convincing evidence of realisation of the asset in near future.

41. CSR Expenditure

Gross amount required to be spent during the year : ¥ 45.02 lacs

Amount spent during the year (contribution to NPO, promotion of education, sanitation work and others) paid in
cash : ¥ 31.66 lacs (previous year I 14.96 lacs) .

42. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's
classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Orient Abrasives Limited

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 :
Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Mihir Devani Hemul Shah
per Arpit K Patel Whole Time Director Director
Partner DIN : 07238089 DIN : 00058558

Membership No. 34032

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 26, 2016

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2016

Sd/-
Hari Swaroop Goyal
GM Accounts & Finance

Annuai Report
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@ ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

BALLOT FORM

[To be returned to Scrutinizer appointed by Orient Abrasives 1.id.]

NZME Of the MEMBEI{S) © e ieieerire ittt rrs e rr e s n e ee s hnara s em s enshes e e esessas s feamsm st bebad et be A SRS A4 SRb o Re AL n s s ns b e bt
FREGISTEIB AGUIESS © ..ovvereeeeereriecteecee e cecme e e redes e crerereseerdseasbHo 84 s 20 s 1504 Eh RS L SRSt 4288 e s eR S aT e R R AR AL SE e Ped 0P 4R L se s ne s s aema Tt sn st e
e et et

e

NO. OF SHAIBS NBIA © ...t sena s sree e ses s sree st e s A RaE bR S sa s s Shs e RO E TR R R AR 4B RE S brsn bt bbb

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the ordinary / special resolutions as specified in the AGM notice of the
company dated 09 August 2016, conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said resolutions in the relevant box below:-

Item Description Type of 1/ We 1/ We
No. Resolution | assent to | dissent to
{Ordinary / the the
Special) | resolution | resolution
(For) (Against)
1. Adoption of the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 20186,
the Staiement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended on Qrdinary
that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and auditors
thereon.
2. To declare final dividend on equity shares. Ordinary
3. To appoint Director Mr. Hemul Shah (DIN 00058558) who retires
by rotation and being eligible for rotation and being eligible Ordinary
for re-appoiniment.
4. Re-appointment of Messrs. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, having Registration No. 324982E as the auditors Ordinary
of the Gompany for a period of one year & fix their remuneration.
Regularisation of Additional Director, Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra (DIN 02036626) Crdinary
Appointment and Ratification of Cost auditors of Messrs 5. K. Rajani
& Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113), Cost Accountants, as the cost Ordinary
auditors of the Company for a period of one year & fix their
remuneration.

Place:
Date :

Signature of Member(s) / Beneficial Owner
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. ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

ATTENDANCE SLIP

{Please hand over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)

45" Annual General hMeeting — 28 September 2016

| hereby record my presence at the FORTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at
Hotel Lords Eco Inn Porbandar (A Unit of Delite Enterprises), Near Circuit House, Chaupati, Porbandar 360575
on Wednesday, 28" September, 2016 at 10.00 A.M.

Full name of the Member (IN BLOCK LETTERS) .....oociii e rere s e ssss s inssns nsnses saee s sessste st eass e s s rassssasmessesnsesss esanasssiass

S N

Client 1D ............ e ateereTerressvarErEraTERa YL Tae e aneanaeneeeeeiennen

No.of Shares held ...........ovveeiiiiiri e

Full name of Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS) .ioiiiiiii it ittt e e e e en e cn e

MEMDEE'S / PIOXY'S SIJNAIUB....c.vivvrcrveeeerireeesersirasssresrsserscsssseseseseesscsssssseaceeasearab s ssbabib s s sp s Re S e e e R e e Re e e e e e bnns s s penpa b s

Note : Your entry to the Meeting will be regulated by this attendance slip.
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@. ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : L24299GJ1971PLC093248
Name of the Company : Qrient Abrasives Limited
Registered Office : GIDC Industrial Area Porbandar 360577, Gujarat

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ld

Folic No. / Client Id

DP ID

/We, being the member(s) of ............. shares of the above named ¢ompany, hereby appoint:
1. Name Lt ea e teEtertweenaeeieaeresrinriivtresanaaieriarran

AGOrESS 1 coriiiitirererreriner et rr e mmre s n st e

E-mail I8 1 oreeiiiieneeeaeiieeiin e ran e et r e et

SIGMALUIE © oo et s e , or failing him

R Y 1 T S PP PP PP PP TP PRERN
AGAIESS I coiericeee e e rreens
E-Mall B 1 et ier e e s
SIGatUre | oo , or failing him

3. Name @ ... e e it
AGAIESS | ereeeeieeeeiees it traree i e e et aa e s
B-mMail [0 1 i ee e tr e et e
SIGNAIUTE | i

as my/our proxy o attend and vote {on poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 45% Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Wednesday, 28" September, 2016 at 10.00 A.M. at Hotel Lords Eco Inn Porbandar (A Unit
of Delite Enterprises), Near Circuit House, Chaupati, Porbandar — 360575 and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolution as are indicated below:

Reselution No.

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, Board's and Auditors’ Reports for the financial year ended 31% March, 2016.

2. Declaration of dividend for the year 2015-16 on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint Director Mr. Hemul Shah (DIN 00058558) who retires by rotation and being eligible for rotation and being eligible

- for re-appointment. ’

4. Re-appointment of Messrs. S.R. Batlibot & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Registration No. 324982E as the auditors
of the Company for a period of one year & fix their remuneration.

Special Business

5. Regularisation of Additional Directar, Mrs. Sangeeta Bohra (DIN Q2036626).

6. Appointment and Ratification of Cost audiiors of Messrs S.K.Rajani & Co. (Firm Registration No. 101113}, Cost Accountants,
as the cost auditors of the Company for a period of one year & fix their remuneration.

Signed this day of 2016

Affi
Signature of Shareholder: Heve':ue
Signature of Proxy hoider: Stamp
NOTES:

1. This form of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. For the Resclutions, Explanatory Statement and Motes, please refer to the Notice of the FORTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company.




BOOK POST

If undelivered please return to:

ORIENT ABRASIVES LIMITED

GIDC Industrial Area
Porbandar - 360 577

Gujarat

Telephone : 0286 - 2221788-9 Fax : 0286 - 2222719
e-mail . ho@oalindia.com & investor@oaimail.co.in .
web site : www.orientabrasives.com

CIN : L24299GJ1971PLC093248



